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Derry Township School District
Board of Directors Meeting
February 10, 2020
Summary Minutes - XIV

1. OPENING ITEMS
a, Call to Order

Minutes
Mrs. Steiner called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.

b. Roll Call

Members in Attendance: John Abel, Donna Cronin, Lindsay Drew, Maria Memmi,
Lewis Shaw, Tricia Steiner, Terry Singer, and Judy Haverstick

Member Absent: Kathy Sicher

Non-Voting Members in Attendance: Joe McFarland, and Mike Frentz

Staff/Public in Attendance: Dan Tredinnick, Jason Reifsnyder, Peter Ebert, Christine
Drexler, Jacob Drexler, Michael Drexler, Julia Perry, Samantha Koegler, Elliot
Stalebrink, Jordan Braun, Rebecca Moore, Ryan Liddick, Elizabeth Blosky, Amy Licata,

and Clairc Williams
¢. Flag Salute
d. Approval of Board of Directors Agenda

Approval of the February 10, 2020 Derry Township School District Board of Directors
Agenda.

Minutes

Following a motion by Mr. Singer and a sccond by Mrs. Memmi the agenda for the evening's meeting
was approved.

Vore Results

John Abel, Donna Cronin, Lindsay Drew, Judy Haverstick, Maria Memmi, Lewis
Yea: § . .. .. .
Shaw, Terry Singer, Tricia Steiner
Nay: 0
Abstain:
Not Cast: | Kathy Sicher

2. INFORMATIONAL AND PROPOSALS

a. Students of the Month Recognition

Minutes
Dr. Ebert, Assistant High School Principal, introduced the students of the month for February:

» Amy Wu
o Jacob Drexler

b. Staff Recognition

Minutes

Mr. McFarland recognized Joseph Godino, Bus Driver. Mr. Godino was recognized for going above
and beyond his duties. Mr. Godino assisted a group of students during a traffic accident.



¢. Presentation: Dauphin County Technical School Update

d.

e

DCTS Presenters:

DCTS Administrative Director - Karen Pflugh

DCTS Senior Student - Rebecca Moore, Cosmetology

DCTS Senor Student - Jordan Braun, Electrical Construction & Mainlenance

Minutes

Dauphin County Technical School Director, Karen Pflugh, provided the Board with an update on the
Dauphin County Technical School and also introduced two Derry Township School District students
that are attending DCTS. Student Rebecca Moore described her experience in the Cosmetology
program and Jordan Braun described his experience in the Electrical program.

Presentation: Mini - TIION

Advisor: Liz Blosky - HS Science Teacher

Advisor: Amy Licata - HS Science Teacher

Claire Williams - Lead Presenter, Mini-THON Director, and Senior
Jaelissa Akers - Mini-THON Director and Senior

Julia Parrey - Mini-THON Director and Senior

Elliot Stalebrink - Mini-THON Director and Junior

Samantha Koegler - Min1-THON Director and Sophomore

Slide Presentation Link

Minutes
Claire Williams provided a presentation to the Board on Mini-THON at Derry Township School

District,

Presideni Communications

Minutes
Mrs. Steiner announced that the Board met in executive session prior to this meeting to discuss:

+ DMatters of Personnel
+ Agency Business which, if conducted in public, would violate a lawful privilege or lead to
disclosure of confidential information.

f. Recognition of Citizens (Agenda Items)

This 1s an opportunity for residents and taxpayers to address the Board on matters related
to the agenda. Those who speak are asked to come to the microphone and state your
name and address for the record. To provide other residents with an opportunity to speak,
cach speaker during the public comment portion is limited to five {5) minutes of
speaking time once recognized and limited to one opportunity to address the Board
during each of the public comment periods. If necessary, the Board may set a maximum
time for the public comment portion of any meeting.

Speakers are asked to review the protocol for addressing the Board which can be found at
the sign in table prior to speaking. Thosc wishing to present private concerns or
questions needing follow-up outside of the Board meeting are asked to fill out a contact
card, which can be found at the podium, Completed cards may be turned in to members
of the administration to facilitate a reply.

Minutes
The following citizens were recognized by the Board:

» None
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g. Standing Committee Meeting Report

Minutes
Mrs. Steiner reported that the Policy Standing Committee met prior to this evening's meeting to
discuss:

o Mrs. Steiner was elected Chair
» Committee reviewed 5 policies, which were approved to the full Board for 30 day review.

h. Community Correspondence Report

Minutes
Mr. Tredinnick reported that there were 10 Community Correspondences received during the month
of January.

i. Student Representatives’ Report
As per Board Policy 004.1, the purpose of having two non-voting Student
Representatives on the Board is to establish a communication link between the Board of
School Directors and the student body of Hershey High School. The position will serve
in presenting the students' viewpoints to the Board.

Minutes

Miss Aluguin updated the Board on the upcoming Hershey High School Musical and other
performances by musical student groups

Mr. Carrera updated the Board on Mini-THON and High School course selection process.

j- Anticipated Agenda [tems for the Next Board of Directors Meeting
The following items will be on the Agenda for the February 24, 2020 Public Board of
Dircctors Meeting:
1. Approval of February 10, 2020 Board of Directors Summary Minutes

2. Leadership Training
3. Granada Roof - Brick Repairs
4,  Derry Township Tax Collection Association Citizen Advisor Approval
5. Assoclation By-Laws
6. Requests for the Use of Facilities
7. Personncl
8.  Staff Development
Minutes
ittilcip:llt.cd agenda itcms for the February 24, 2020 Public Board of Directors Meeting were

3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
4. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

The consent agenda contains routinely adopted itcms and items that normally do not
require public deliberations on the part of the Board. A Board Member may pull items
which will then be discusscd and voted on separately.
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Minutes
Following a motion by Mrs. Memmi and a second by Ms. Drew the consent agenda items were
approved.

Vorte Results

John Abel, Donna Cronin. Lindsay Drew. Judy Haverstick, Maria Memmi, Lewis Shaw,

Yea: 3 Terry Singer, Tricia Steiner
Nay:
Abstain: 0
Mot Cast: | Kathy Sicher

a. Approval of January 27, 2020 Summary Board of Directors Meeting Minutes - XHI

h. Approval of Field Trip/Excursion - Speech and Debate Club

The Administration recommends the approval of the proposed overnight field
trip/excursion as listed:

Group: Speech and Debate Club
Number of Participating Students: | 5

Grade Level: 9-12

Destination: g:ggg:gﬁgggﬁvm‘sﬂy
Purpose: Statewide Competition
Depart: March 13, 2020

Return: March 14, 2020

Trip Leader: Maxine True

The District reserves the right to cancel the excursion based on events that could pose a
heightened safely or security risk.
c. Approval of Field Trip/Excursion - Shakespeare Competition

The Administration recommends the approval of the proposed overnight field
trip/excursion as listed:

Group: Pennsylvania State Shakespeare Competition
Number of Participating Students: | 1

Grade Level: 11

Destination: igrl;ta;l,cfl);Umvermty

Purpose: State Shakespeare High School Competition
Depart: February 14, 2020

Return: February 15, 2020

Trip Leader: Collette Silvestri

The District reserves the right to cancel the excursion based on events that could pose a
heightened safety or security risk.
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d. Approval of Field Trip/Excursion - Band
The Administration recommends the approval of the proposed overnight leld
trip/excursion as listed:

Group: Band

Number of Participating Students: |2

Grade Level: 0-12
Central Dauphin High School

Destination: Harrisburg, PA

Purpose: PMEA District 7 Jazz Band
Depart. March 20, 2020

Return: March 21, 2020

Trip Leader: Brandon Buterbaugh

The District reserves the right to cancel the excursion based on events that could pose a
heightened safety or security risk.

¢. Approval of Field Trip/Excursion - Sixth Grade Class
The Administration rccommends the approval of the proposed overnight field
trip/excursion as listed:

Group: Sixth Grade Class
Number of Purticipating Students: | 265

Grade Level: 6

Destination: Kenbrook Camp

Lebanon, PA

Use of outdoors to teach students cross curricular

Purpose: lessons

Depart: May 18, 2020

Return: May 20, 2020

Trip Leader: Mike Warfel and Dan Hugendubler

The District reserves the right to cancel the excursion based on cvents that could pose a
heightened safety or sccurity risk.

f. Approval of Field Trip/Excursion - Hershey Powerlifting

The Administration recommends the approval of the proposed overnight field
trip/excursion as listed:

Group: Hershey Powerlifting

Number of Participating Students: |13
Grade Level: 9-12

2020 High School Nationals
Kileen, Texas

Destination:

Purpose. 2020 High School Nationals
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Depart: March 25, 2020
Return: March 30, 2020
Trip Leader: Troy Smith and Dan Hugendubler

The District reserves the right to cancel the excursion based on events that could pose a
heightened safety or security risk.

2. Request for the Use of School Facilities

The Administration recommends the approval of the following Request for the Use of

School Facilities:

Group:

Hershey Soccer Club

Date/Time:

Saturday, June 20, 2020 from 7:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.
Sunday, June 21, 2020 from 7:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.mn.

Location:

322 Turf Field, Football/Track Turf Field, Memorial Field, Middle
School

Grass Fields A & B, HS Multi-Purpose Fields A & B, & JV
Baseball outfield

Fvent:

Hershey Summer Classic Soccer Tournament 2020

Fee:

Rental of 2 Turf Fields: $35.00 per hour/per tield (Approximately
$1,400.00)

Memorial l'ield, Middle School Grass Fields A & B, & High
School

Multi-Purpose Fields A & B, and JV Baseball Field: $25.00 per
hour/per field

(Approximately $3,000.00)

Custodian: $59.93 per hour (Approximately $1198.60)

TOTAL FEES: (Approximately $5,598.60)

Group:

Hershey Soccer Cluh

Date/Time:

Saturday, May 23, 2020 from 7:00 a.m. - 6:00 p.m.
Sunday, May 24, 2020 from 7:00 a.m. - 6:00 p.m.

Requested
Faciliry:

322 Turl Field, Memorial Field, 2 Middle School Grass Fields
HS Multi - Purposc Fields A & B

Event:

Hershey Memorial Day Chalienge Soccer Tournament

Fee:

322 Turt Field Rental: $35.00 per hour (Approximately $840.00)
Memorial Football Field, Middle School Grass Fields A & B, High
School

Mulu-Purpose Fields A & B, IV Baseball Outticld: $25 per
hour/per ficld

(Approximately $3,600.00)

Custodian: $59.93 per hour {Approximately $1,438.32)

TOTAL FEES: (Approximately $5,878.32)
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Group: Township of Derry
Date/Time: Thursday, May 21, 2020 5:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m.
Requested Facility | Middle School LGI
Event: Parent's Night for the Summer Day Camp Program
Fee: None
Group: Hershey Soccer Club
L Saturday, August 15, 2020 from 7:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.
Date/Time. Sunday, August 16, 2020 from 7:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.
322 Turf Field, Football/Track Turf Field, Memorial Field, Middle
Requested School
Facility: Grass Fields A & B, HS Multi-Purpose Fields A & B, & IV
Baseball outfield
Lvent: Hershey Cup Soccer Tounament
Rental of 2 Turf Ficlds: $35.00 per hour/per ficld (Approximately
$1,400.00)
Memortal Ficld, Middle School Grass Ficlds A & B, & High
School
Fee: Multi-Purpose Fields A & B, and JV Baseball Ficld: $25.00 per
hour/per field
{Approximately 53,000.00)
Custodian: $59.93 per hour (Approximately $1198.60)
TOTAL FEES: (Approximately $5,598.60)
Group: Hershey Little League
March | - November 14, 2020
Monday - Friday
. 5:00 p.m. - 10:00 p.m. (during school year)
Date/Time: 9:00 a.m. - 10:00 p.m. (after school year)
Saturdays - 9:00 a.m. - 10:00 p.m.
Sundays - 12:00 p.m. - 10:00 p.m.
North Field (Little League), South Field (Softball), Memorial
Reouested Field, & JV Baseball Field
eque **xJV Baseball Field unavailable the following weekends: May
Facility: 73 24
(Memorial Day), June 20, 21, August 15, & 16.
Event: Little League Baseball Practices & Games
Fee: None
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h. Announcement of Staff Development Conferences

Staff Member: | Miriam Collins

Conference: Random Acts of Kindness - The Kindness Experiment
Location: Denver, Colorado

Dates: April § - 10, 2020

Staff Member: |Pamela Keene

Conference: AIM Curriculum Workshop

Location: Philadelphia, PA

Dates: March 22 - 23, 2020

Staff Member: |Page Kozak

Conference: School Nursing: Rooted in Values, Growing through Knowledge
Location: State College, PA

Dates: March 27 - 29, 2020

Staff Member: | Allison Mackley

Conference: ALA Annual Conference

Location: Chicago, IL

Dates: June 235 - June 30, 2020

Staff Member: |Brianna Pogue

Conference: AIM Conference/Training

Location: Philadelphia, PA

Dates: March 22 - 23, 2020

Staff Member: | Donna Spangler

Conference: Learning Forward Academy 2021 - Session 3
Location: Minneapolis, MN

Dates: July 16 - 19, 2020

Staff Member: | Deirdre Stalnecker

Conference:

School Social Work Association of America National Conference

Location:

Balttmore, MD

3of 14



Datres: March 17 - 21, 2020

Staff Member: | David Yingst

Conference. Learning Forward Academy 2021 - Session 3
Location: Minneapolis, MN
Dates: July 16 - 19, 2020

5. NEW BUSINESS

a. Approval of Hershey Theatre Venue Agreement for the 2020-2021 High School
Commencement
The Administration recommends the approval of the Hershey Theatre Venue Use
Agreement for the 2020-2021 Hershey High School Commencement Ceremony.

Minutes

Following a motion by Dr. Cronin and a second by Mrs. Memmi the agreement with Hershey Theatre
Venue Use Agreement for the 2020-2021 Hershey High School Commencement Ceremony was
approved.

Vorte Results

John Abel, Donna Cronin, Lindsay Drew, Judy Haverstick, Maria Memmi, Lewis

Yea: § Shaw, Terry Singer, Tricia Steiner
Nay:
Abstain:
Not Casit: ! Kathy Sicher

b. Approval of Internship Affiliation Agreement - Millersville University of Pennsylvania

The Administration recommends the Board approve the five-year Affiliation Agreement with the
Derry Township School District and Millersville University of Pennsylvania effective the 2019-2020
academic vear.

Minutes
Following a motion by Ms. Drew and a second by Mrs. Memmi the Internship Affiliation Agreement
with Millersville University of Pennsylvania was approved.

Vore Results

John Abel, Donna Cronin, Lindsay Drew, Judy Haverstick, Maria Memmi, Lewis

Yea: 8 Shaw, Terry Singer, Tricia Steiner
Nay:
Abstain:
Not Cast: ] Kathy Sicher

¢. Approval of CAIU Operation and Maintenance Agreement for District Classroom Space,
Preschool
The Administration recommends the approval of the CAIU Operation and Maintenance
Agreement for District Classroom Space to be used for a Preschool Program for a period
of one year, July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020.
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Minutes

Following a motion by Dr. Cronin and a second by Mrs. Memmi the CAIU Operation and
Maintenance Agreement for District Classroom Space to be used for a Preschool Program for a period
of one year, July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 was approved.

Vote Results

John Abel, Donna Cronin, Lindsay Drew, Judy Haverstick, Maria Memmi, Lewis

Yea: 8 Shaw, Terry Singer, Tricia Steiner
Nay: 0
Abstain:
Not Cast: | Kathy Sicher

d. Approval of 2018-2019 Audit Report
The Administration recommends the Board approve the 2018-2019 Audit Report
prepared by the firm of Boyer and Ritter, LLC.

Minutes
Following a motion by Mr. Singer and a second by Ms. Drew the 2018-2019 Audit Report prepared
by the firm of Boyer and Ritter, LLC was approved.

Vote Results

John Abel. Donna Cronin, Lindsay Drew, Judy Haverstick. Maria Memmi, Lewis

Yea: 8 Shaw, Terry Singer, Tricia Steiner
Nay:
Abstain:
Not Cast: | Kathy Sicher

e. Personnel - Resignations

The Administration recommends the approval of the following resignations:
Professional:

Lemaster, Elizabeth

Mathematics Teacher

High School

Reason: Retirement

Effective: At the end of the 2019-2020 school year

White, Natalie

Family & Consumer Science Teacher

High School

Reason: Retirement

Effective: At the end of the 2019-2020 school year

Classified:

O'Connor, Linda
Administrative Assistant
High School

Reason: Retirement
Effective: 07/24/2020
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Tobin, Jean

General Food Service Worker
Elementary School

Reason: Personal

Effective; 1/31/2020 (retroactive)

Minutes
Following a motion by Mrs. Memmi and a second by Ms. Drew the Personnel - Resignation items
were approved.

Viote Results

John Abel, Donna Cronin, Lindsay Drew, Judy Haverstick, Maria Memmi, Lewis

Yea: 8 Shaw, Terry Singer, Tricia Steiner
Nay: 0
Abstain; 0
Not Cast: | Kathy Sicher

f. Personnel - General
1. The Administration recommends the approval of the following appointments and
recogrition of the following transfers:
Professional:

Dee, Jordan (for Ryan Johnson)

Special Education Teacher

Early Childhood Center

Long-Term Substitute

Bachelors, Step |

Salary: $52,494 (pro-rated)

Eftective: 02/11/2020 through the end of the 2019-2020 school year

Classified:

Costantini, Philip
Substitute Custodian
District-wide

Salary: $15.23 per hour
Effective: 02/11/2020

Holley, Kristy {rcplacing Lesley Beyer}
Paraprofessional (Self-Contained Classroom)
Early Childhood Center

Level B: 6.5 hours per day

Salary: $16.76 per hour

Effective: 02/11/2020
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Howard-Caesar, La'Trisa (replacing Kelly Ross)
Paraprofessional

Middle Schooi

Level A: 5.75 hours per day

Salary: $16.76 per hour

Effective: 02/11/2020

Transfer of Classified Staff:

Anthony, Alyeshia*

From: Administrative Assistant

Intermediate Elementary

To: Administrative Assistant (replacing Jennifer Meckes)
Primary Elementary

Level A: 4.5 hours per day

Salary: $19.30 per hour

Effective: 02/11/2020

Zimmerman, Theresa*

From: General Food Service Worker

Middle School

To: General Food Service Worker (replacing fean Tobin)
Elementary School

Level A: 4.0 hours per day

Salary: $13.25 per hour

Effective: 02/11/2020

Limited Service Contracts:

Clouser, Barbara®

Mentor to Cecelia Kreamer, Spanish Teacher LTS
High School

Salary: $500

Effective: 2/11/2020

Beverly Cullen*

Assistant Varsity Boy's Tennis Coach
Group G, Step 7

Salary: $2,325

Effective: 02/11/2020
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2. The Administration recommends the approval of the following request in accordance
with District Policy 339:

Lamparter, William*

Bus Driver

District-wide

Uncompensated Leave

Effective: 01/30/2020 through 02/29/2020 (retroactive)

*This individual is currently an employee. Clearances are on file.

Minutes
Following a motion by Dr. Cronin and a second by Mrs. Memmi the Personnel - General items were

approved and transfers were recognized.

Vote Results

John Abel, Donna Cronin, Lindsay Drew. Judy Haverstick. Maria Memmi, Lewis

Tow: 8 Shaw, Terry Singer, Tricia Steiner
Nay: 0
Abstain: 0
Not Cast: | Kathy Sicher

6. DELEGATE REPORTS
7. SPECIAL REPORTS

a. Board Members' Report

Minutes
The following Board members provided reports:

e Mr. Abel - Reported on the Downtown Hershey Association meeting;
e Dr. Cronin - Called attention to some of the mailings Board members received from PSBA

b. Superintendent's Report

Minutes
Mr. McFarland provided the following report to the Board:

e Congratulations to our girls” swim and dive team on modeling our COCOA principles
recently at an away swim meet. Mr. Govern received the following email following the
meet:

® “Iam a former varsity swim coach at State College and have been one of the Pool
Supervisors and Meet Managers there the past five years. Last night after the SC
(State College) vs. Hershey Swimming and Diving Meet, I went in to clean up the
locker rooms and the girls' locker room was SPOTLESS. Like, I've-never-seen-
the-locker-room-so-clean spotless. Please tell your coaches and teams that I've
been around pool locker rooms for almost 30 years and have never seen anything
like that. Whatever they are doing with their student-athletes is working!™
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¢. Board President's Report

Minutes
Mrs. Steiner did not have a report for the Board.

8. RECOGNITION OF CITIZENS

This is an opportunity for residents and taxpayers to address the Board on matters related
to the agenda or matters of District Governance not on the agenda. Those who speak are
asked to come to the microphone and follow the same guidelines outlined at the initial
public comment portion of our meeting.

Minutes
The following citizens were recognized by the Board:

e Christine Drexler - Thanked Board members that attended the Township of Derry Board of
Supervisors meeting.

9. ADJOURNMENT

Minutes
Following a motion by Mrs. Memmi and a second by Ms. Drew the meeting was adjourned at 8:03 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

i U

Michael Frentz
Secretary to the Board
Approved Egbryary 24, 2020

y {
Kathy‘ﬁi}ch%ﬁ/
President of{ the Board of Directors
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STUDENT OF THE MONTH - HERSHEY ROTARY CLUB - STUDENT ACHIEVEM.,, Page 1 of 3

STUDENT OF THE MONTH - HERSHEY
ROTARY CLUB - STUDENT ACHIEVEMENTS

Phonetic pronunciation of your name.

Jay-cub Drecks-Ler

Student Name *

Jacob Drexler

Parents Names *

Christine and Michael Drexter =~ =

Phone number *

Home mailing address

https://docs.google.com/forms/u/0/d/1 Xz-Calrr Y vmUMONX598j33qu_VbSxKuUuASLR_... 1/27/2020




STUDENT OF THE MONTH - HERSHEY ROTARY CLUB - STUDENT ACHIEVEM... Page 2 of 3

Current School Activities *

Please list current school activities.

Theater, We matter club President and founder, National Honor Society President, marching
band, Jazz band, link crew leader, Humans of Hershey High School Photographer,

Honors and Awards *

Please list any honors or awards you've received.

Distinguished honor rolf

GPA (optional}

Current Service Activities and Achievements *

Cocoa Packs, unite youth, church praise band drummer, young people’s ministry Council, math
National Honor Society, French National Honor Society

Hobbies *

Senior Year Courses *

Wind symphony, marching band, AP English Literature, AP Physics, AP Calculus AB, French 5,
Accounting 1, Money and Power, Alternative PE

https://docs.google.com/forms/w/0/d/1 Xz-Calrr Y vinUMONX598j33qu_Vb5xKuUuASLR ... 1/27/2020




STUDENT OF THE MONTH - HERSHEY ROTARY CLUB - STUDENT ACHIEVEM... Page 3 of 3
Future Plans
Name of college / university you plan to attend?

Franklin & Marshall

Intended Major

This form was created inside of Derry Township Schosl District,

https://docs.google.com/forms/u/0/d/1 Xz-Calrr Y vmUMONX598i33qu_Vb5xKuUuASLR ... 1/27/2020



STUDENT OF THE MONTH - HERSHEY ROTARY CLUB - STUDENT ACHIEVEM... Page 1 of 5

STUDENT OF THE MONTH - HERSHEY
ROTARY CLUB - STUDENT ACHIEVEMENTS

Phonetic pronunciation of your name.

Student Name *

AmyWu

Parents Names *

Xianzhu Wu (dad}) & Jianhong Zhang (mom)

Phone number *

Home mailing address

https://docs.google.com/forms/u/0/d/1 Xz-Calrr Y vmUMONX598j33qu_VbSxKutJuASLR ... 1/27/2020




STUDENT OF THE MONTH - HERSHEY ROTARY CLUB - STUDENT ACHIEVEM... Page 2 of 5

Current School Activities *

Please list cusrent school activities.

Sclence Olympiad (team captain}, Youth and Government (Committee Chair (statewide
leadership, 3 years), Pod Leader (Club leadership, 3 years)), TEDxYouth@ChocolateAve (Overall
Chair), PULSE, National Honor Society, Spanish Honor Society {Vice President), Mu Alpha Theta
(Math Honor Society), Psychology Honor Society

https://docs.google.com/forms/u/0/d/1 Xz-Calrr Y vmUMONX598j33qu_ VbSxKuUuASLR ... 1/27/2020



STUDENT OF THE MONTH - HERSHEY ROTARY CLUB - STUDENT ACHIEVEM... Page 3 of 5 I

Honors and Awards *

Please list any honors or awards you've received,

Qualifier for US National Chemistry Olympiad (qualified with 2nd highest score in my section)

National Silver Medal in Scholastic Art and Writing Awards in 11th grade {Gold Keys in 2018 and
2019)

US Presidential Scholars Candidate

2 Time Anatomy and Physiology State Champion (Science Olympiad)

2nd Place in Disease Detectives at State Science Qlympiad Competition

1st Place with Perfect Score at Pennsylvania Junior Academy of Sciences (PJAS) Science Fair
National Merit Scholarship Semifinalist (pending Finalist status)

3 Time Alternate for the Conference on National Affairs (Youth and Government)

AP Scholar with Bistinction

Class President

1st Place at 33rd Annual Brossman Feundation and. Ronald E. Frisbie Sr. Science Lectureship at
Miliersville University

3rd Place at 45th Annual John Steiner Gold Exam at Bucknell University
21 School Awards (17 Academic Achievement Awards, certificate from American Chemical
Society recognizing me as Chemistry Student of the Year at Hershey High School, school wide

award recognizing me for representing Hershey High School at Hugh O'Brian (HOBY) State
Leadership Seminar as the Majority Caucus Chair, and 2 Class Achievement Awards)

GPA (optional)

https:/docs.google.com/forms/u/0/d/1 Xz-Calrr Y vmUMONXS98j33qu_Vb3xKulU'uASLR ... 1/27/2020



STUDENT OF THE MONTH - HERSHEY ROTARY CLUB - STUDENT ACHIEVEM.., Page 4 of 5

Current Service Activities and Achievements *
HOBY Community Leadership Workshop (CLeW) attendee (Sth grade) and organizer (11th grade,
also served as Majority Caucus Chair at HOBY State Leadership Seminar {10th grade), through

HOBY, t've volunteered on a horse farm, food bank, etc.; Hershey Public Library volunteer;
Mathcounts Tutor; National Honor Saciety (NHS) Tutor; through NHS, I've also participated in a

Hobbies *

I love reading whatever | can get my hands on. | also love watching nature and history

Senior Year Courses *

AP Physics, AP Biology, AP English Literature and Composition, AP Statistics, AP European

Future Plans

Name of college / university you plan to attend?

Unknown

Intended Major

Neuroscience and Computer Science double major

https://docs.google.com/forms/u/0/d/1Xz-Calrr Y vmUMONX598i33qu_Vb5xKuUuASLR ... 1/27/2020
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Additional Information

| want to ber_:_;_q_rpe a doctor. o

This form was created inside of Derry Township Schaool District.

https://docs.google.com/forms/u/0/d/1Xz-Calrr Y vmUMONX598j33qu_VbSxKuUJuASLR ... 1/27/2020




Derry Township School District

Request for Field Trip Form

Date Submitted: 2422000

Name of Group, Class or Organization: Speech and Dehate Cluh
Teacher(s) or Advisar(s): pavina Trie

Destination: ploomchurg 1iniversity 400 E-2nd Street Bloomsburg PA
L3

Transportasion Provider: pyen

Bate of Departure: Mareh 13, 2070 Date of Retusn:  Mapch 14,2020

Time of Departure: g. 15 o0 Time of Return:  5:30 pm
Does this trip need board approval (overnight fieldirip)? Yes [No

Purpose of Trip:  Tg yue their speech and debate skills fo compate statewide as payt of schonl club

Number of Students Participating: § Grade level(sk: 4.7

Curriculum Conneetions
1. To use their speech and debate skills to compele statewide as part of school club.
2.

3

Names of All Staff Participating: (Check [_] if a substitiste teacher is required)
D Maxige True D

O L
O [

Nume of Yolunteer Chaperongs: (Check [ if clearances have been approved - Verify with Human Resources)
[®] willigm Prescott {Roy Prescatty ]

Date: '215 IZO

Teacher(s) or Advisor{s} Signature:

T

The PrincipalSupervisor musi have the emergency contact information and lis¢ of all participapts prior to the date of the trip.

Revised 2/5/19




Cost Per Staff /

Field Trip Costs Soxber| quy. | Sudent | Safor | Quy. | Chaperone |  Amount
tudent Subtotal Chaperone Subtotal
A | Transportation $065 |148.00| $96.20 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 $96.20
B | Lodging $0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00 $0.00 $0.00
C ]| Meals $23.10 | 6.00 | $138.60 $23.10 1.00 $23.10 $161.70
D ] Registration/Entrance Fees $15.00 | 5.00 $75.00 $ 150.00 1.00 $ 150.00 $225.00
E | Staff Substitutes ($129 per substitute per day)
F | Other Expenses (List): Hotel $ 450.00
Total Trip Expense (Add Amounts for Lines A - F) $932.90
Field Trip Funding Sources Fee Qty. Amount
Fees paid by Student/Family $0.00
Fees paid by Chaperone $0.00 0.00 $0.00
I PTO/Booster Club (specify)
J Activity Account (specify)
K Department Budget (specify) Speech and Debate Budget for Travel (10-3210-000-30-80-529) $707.90
L Other (Spe.cify) Speech and Debate Budget for Dues (10-3210-000-30-80-529-810) $225.00
Total Trip Funding (Add Amounts for Lines G - L) $932.90

Total Trip Funding Must equal Total Trip Expense

Plan to cover costs for students with an economic hardship: n/a

Explanation if Funding Sources are less than Field Trip Costs:

Approval/Disapproval
Building/Supervisor’s Principal: Approved K Disapproved
Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction: Approved Disapproved

Reason for Disapproval:

4
Principal’s/Supervisor’s Signatyre: T M . Date Processed: 4// 9/'/“"”

Superintendent’s Signature: N\ ANIOEA ) Date Processed: qz l éél Q()Q )




Derry Township School District

(

Request for Field Trip Form

Date Submitted: _1/ 27/2020

Name of Group, Class or Organization: _Band

Teacher{s) or Advisor{s): Brandon Bulerbaugh

Destination: Central Dauphin High Schoot

Transportation Provider: DTS (van)

Date of Departure: 3/20/2020 Date of Return: 3f21f2920

Time of Departure: s Time of Return: _{Van is one-way, studenis w/ parents)

Does this trip need board approval {overnight fieldtrip)? Yes [INo

Purpose of Trip:  Participation is PMEA District 7 Jazz Band

Number of Students Participating: 2 Grade level(s): 9-12

Curricutum Connections
I.  National Standard MU:Re9.1.E.lla - Responding: Evaluate

5 National Standard MU:Cnl1.0.T11la - Connecting #11

3.

Names of All Staff Participating: {Check I if & substitute teacher is required}
[W] Brandon Buterbaugh ]

L] [
[ L]

Name of Velunteer Chaperones; (Check [] if clearances have been approved — Verify with Human Resources)

O [
O ]
[ O

sl i

Teacher(s) or Advisor(s) Signature: M”;ﬁ% ; Date: “/2\’772520

The Principal/Superviser must have the emergency contact information and list of all participants prior to the date of the trip.

Revised 2/5/19 \/



Field Trip Costs CostPer | | Student (é{t):;'fp;: Qty. Chzt:g;ne Amount
Student Subtotal Chaperone Subtotal

A | Transportation $8 2 $16 $ 0.00 $16
B | Lodging $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
C | Meals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
D | Registration/Entrance Fees $140 2 $280 $280
E | Staff Substitutes (8129 per substitute per day) $129
F | Other Expenses (List):

Total Trip Expense (Add Amounts for Lines A - F) $425
Field Trip Funding Sources Fee Qty. Amount
G | Fees paid by Student/Family $0.00
H Fees paid by Chaperone $000
I PTO/Booster Club (specify)
J Substitute o ) $129
K | Department Budget (specify) 10-1110-000-30-80-121 Cade: 580 B $16
L Other (specify) _10—.1_1 10-000-30-80- 121 Code: 810 _ $280
Total Trip Funding (Add Amounts for Lines G - L) $425

Total Trip Funding Must equal Total Trip Expense

Plan to cover costs for students with an economic hardship:

Explanation if Funding Sources are less than Field Trip Costs:

Approval/Disapproval
Building/Sapervisor*s Principal: Approved & Disapproved
Assistant Superintendent for Curricutam & Instruction: Approved (vl Disapproved

Reason for Disapproval:

ﬂmgcd: r/’//)’f/z"’

v

Principal’s/Supervisor’s Signature) . ,_/.’,/9/ 2 A V4
Superintendent’s Signature: _ jldfﬂ.u« >P [,U m.ﬂ‘reb Date Processed: __ Q{{ 4 / 2024

Board Approval Date (if required): _ O 2/10/20




Derry Township School District

Request for Field Trip Form

Date Submitted: 9/3/2019 [+
Name of Group, Class or Organization: 6th Grade
Teacher(s) or Advisor(s): Mike Warfel and Dan Hugendubler
Destination: Kenbrook, Lebanon, PA
Transportation Provider: Derry Township School District
Date of Departure: 5/18/20 & 5/20/20 Date of Return:  5/20/20 & 5/22/20
Time of Departure: 9:00 am Time of Return: 11:30 am on 5/20 & 5/22/20 I+
Does this trip need board approval (overnight fieldtrip)? Yes [No

Purpose of Trip:  Use the outdoors to teach students cross curricular lessons
Number of Students Participating: 265 Grade level(s): 6th
Curriculum Connections

L. Biology
2. Mathematics
3. Communication Arts

Names of All Staff Participating: (Check [] if a substitute teacher is required)
|E| See Attached Paper D

Name of Volunteer Chaperones: (Check [[] if clearances have been approved — Verify with Human Resources)
@ See Attached Paper [+] EI

H : // //:] i g
Teacher(s) or Advisor(s) Signature:'/z /é_(,é/ - /W Date: ‘,L// ?{J <0

The Principal/Supervisor must have the emergency contact information and list of all participants prior to the date of the trip.

Revised 2/5/19



. . Cost Per Staff /
Field Trip Costs Soot per Qty. Sttt Staff or Qty. Chaperone Amount
Student Subtotal Chaperone Subtotal
A | Transportation $521 |265.00 | $1,380.65 $5.21 80.00 $416.80 $1,797.45
B | Lodging $107.00 | 265.00 | $28,355.00 $ 107.00 80.00 § 8,560.00 $36,915.00
C | Meals $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
D | Registration/Entrance Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E | Staff Substitutes ($129 per substitute per day) $3.612.00
F | Other Expenses (List): $ 11,020.00
Total Trip Expense (Add Amounts for Lines A - F) | § 53,344 45
Field Trip Funding Sources Fee Qty. Amount
G Fees paid by Student/Family 525.00 200.00 $ 5.000.00
H Fees paid by Chaperone $50.00 50.00 $ 2,500.00
1 PTO/Booster Club (specify) DEER T-Shirts $ 1,800.00
J Activity Account (specify)
K | Department Budget (specify) 10-1100-000-22-50-000-810 $ 44,044 .45
L Other (specify)
Total Trip Funding (Add Amounts for Lines G - L) $ 53,344 .45

Total Trip Funding Must equal Total Trip Expense

Plan to cover costs for students with an economic hardship:

Explanation if Funding Sources are less than Field Trip Costs: District covers remaining amount

Approval/Disapproval
Building/Supervisor’s Principal: Approved v/ Disapproved
Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction: Approved o Disapproved
Reason for Disapproval:
Principal’s/Supervisor’s Signatyre: (/\puu- eg— Date Processed: (I Sii L A¥)

Superintendent’s Signature:

Date Processed: oj! L«[!Q—DM

2/10/20

Board Approval Date (if required):




v

Derry Township School District

Request for Field Trip Form

Date Submitted: Eehrnary 3 2020

Name of Group, Class or Organization: Hershev Powerlifting
=

Teacher(s) or Advisor(s): Troy Smith & Dan Hugendubler

Destination: gieen Texas

Transportation Provider: 4idine & rental van once in Texas

Date of Departure: 3/25/20 Date of Return: 330420

Time of Departure: morRing Time of Return: afternoon
Does this trip need board approval (overnight fieldtrip)? Yes [INo

Purpose of Trip: 2020 Hioh Schoal Nationals

Number of Students Participating: |3 Grade level(s): g_191h

Curriculum Connections

L. Engage in physical activity that supports achievement of personal fitness and promotes lifelong participation.

2. Use of strategies for enhancing group interaction in physical activities.

3.

Names of All Staff Participating: (Check [] if a substitute teacher is required)
E Troy Smith D
E] Dan Hugendubler |:|

Name of Volunteer Chaperones: (Check [] if clearances have been approved — Verify with Human Resources)

Ll []
L] [
[ [

Teacher(s) or Advisor(s) Signature: '7 /‘COL_ Date: 2/3/20

The Principal/Supervisor must have the emergency contact information and list of all participants prior to the date of the trip.

Revised 2/5/19



. . Cost Per Staff/
Field Trip Costs CostPer | o | Smdent | ootror | Qiy. | Chaperone Amount
Duyton Subtotal Chaperone Subtotal

A | Transportation $41500 | 13.00 | $5395.00 $415.00 2.00 $830.00 $6,225.00
B | Lodging $191.00 | 13.00 | $2.483.00 $286.50 2.00 $573.00 $ 3.,056.00
C | Meals $ 150.00 | 13.00 | $1.950.00 $ 150.00 2.00 $300.00 $2.250.00
D | Registration/Entrance Fees $ 11500 | 13.00 | $1.495.00 $65.00 2.00 $ 130.00 $ 1.625.00
E | Staff Substitutes ($129 per substitute per day) 5 1.032.00

F | Other Expenses (List): 15-Passanger Van $728.00
Total Trip Expense (Add Amounts for Lines A - F) . $ 14916.00

Field Trip Funding Sources Fee Qty. Amount
G Fees paid by Student/Family $512.00 13.00 $ 6.656.00

H Fees paid by Chaperone $436.50 2.00 $873.00

[ PTO/Booster Club (specify)

J Activity Account (specify) ¢oach registration $ 130.00
K Depariment Budget (specify) lifter & coach flights: budget (10-3210-000-30-80-530) object code 580 $6225.00
L | Other (specify) DTSD- subs for Dan & I $ 1.032.00
Total Trip Funding (Add Amounts for Lines G- L) $14.916.00

Total Trip Funding Must equal Total Trip Expense

Plan to cover costs for students with an economic hardship: NA

Explanation if Funding Sources are less than Field Trip Costs:

Approval/Disapproval
Building/Supervisor’'s Principal: Approved Disapproved
Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction: Approved Disapproved
Reason for Disapproval:
]

Principal’s/Supervisor’s Sign; : C?/:/\-Z qL/,Da,leProcessed: = /7’/4&'-7 o

Board Approval Date (if required): 2/10/20

Date Processed: &fs !// H) c::f()
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HERSHEY  THEATRE

|

VENUE USE AGREEMENT

THIS VENUE USE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered into on Movember 14, 2019, by and
between HERSHEY ENTERTAINMENT & RESORTS COMPANY, a Pennsylvania corporation with its
principal place of business at 27 W. Chocolate Avenue, Hershay, Pennsyivania 17033 (hereinafter referred
to as "HE&R") as agent for THE M.S. HERSHEY FOUNDATION, a charitable trust with offices locaied at 63
West Chocolate Avenue, Hershey, Pennsylvania 17033 (hereinafter referred to as “MSHF”) and Hershey
High School, 30A E. Granada Ave., Hershey, PA 17033, (hereinafter called HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL).

BACKGROUND:

MSHF operates several assets in Hershey, Pennsylvania inciuding, but not limited to, Hershey
Theatre, which Is located in the Township of Derry, Pennsylvania (*HERSHEY THEATRE"), and

MSHF has contracted with HE&R fo serve as its agent in operating HERSHEY THEATRE. The
Agreement between MSHF and HE&R authorizes HE&R to, among other things, enter into agreemenis for
entertainment svents at HERSHEY THEATRE, and

HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL desires to use HERSHEY THEATRE, upon and subject to the
provisions of this Agreement, for the event set forth in Paragraph 1 of this Agreement (the "Event").

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of ihe mutual covenants set forth harein, and iniending
io be legally bound, HE&R and HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agres as follows:

1. EVENT INFORMATION:

EVENT: HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL COMMENCEMENT

EVENT DATE: Wednesday, June 2, 2021

EVENT TIME: | 7:00 P

DOGORS OPEN: 5:00 PM

LOAD-IN: Any time after 6:00 AM on \Wednesday, June 2, 2021
LOAD-QUT: Immediately after event concludes on Wednesday, June 2, 2021

2. FEE /| DEPOSIT:

HOUSE FLAT FEE: In consideration for the use of HERSHEY THEATRE, HERSHEY HIGH
SCHOOL agrees to pay HE&R a fee of THREE THOUSAND FIVE
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($3,500.00), PLUS ALL EXPENSES. All
monies are payable in United States currency at settlement on the day
of Event, or immediately upon receipt of invoice following Event.

The house flat includes the following expenses: Venue rent, box office
staff, ushers, ticket takers, security, EMT's/First Aid, cleaning/utility,
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3.

4,

DEPOSIT:

HERSHEY THEATRE production systems, and HERSHEY THEATRE
aquipment.

The house Bat charge does not include the following expenses:
Advertising, SESAC/BMUASCAP/IGMR fees, stagehands, riggers,
electrician, piano tuning, insurance, praduction crew, specific
perforrnances licenses, fransportation, fork fift with operator, lodging,
felephones, internet service, towels & laundry, runners, event credit
card charges and catering.

A deposit of ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED AND FIFTY
DOLLARS {$1,750.00) Is due and payable to HE&R in United States
currency upan signing of this Agreement. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL
agrees to forfeit fulf deposit if the Event is cancelled or postponed, In
addition, HE&R shall be reimbursed for all management axpenses and
other incurred expenses.

if HE&R has reasonable grounds for insecurity as lo HERSHEY HIGH
SCHOOL ability ar willingnass to perform the Event, HE&R shall have
the rght, in its reasonable discretion, to require HERSHEY HIGH
SCHOOL to fumish a bond guaranteeing the faithful performance of the
Event.

TICKET SALES ! BOX OFFICE:

3.1. HE&R shalt af all times maintaln control and direction of HERSHEY THEATRE Box Office {“Box
Cffice”), Box Office parsonnel until settlermnent.

3.2

3.3.

HERSHEY RIGH SCHOOL agrees to pay for all related Box Office services assotiated with the
Event as set forth in Paragraph 3.3 balow.

HE&R retains the right, up to the time of settiement, to provide ticket refunds for due cause in
keeping with the HEER's policy of retaining a good public image. Such refunds shall include, but
nol be limited to, seats blocked by equipment when exchange for comparable location s not
passible or failure of act to appear or go on stage within reasonabie time of scheduie provided by

HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL,

TICKET PRICES: HERSHEY RIGH SCHOOL agrees that all tickets shall be
complimentary.

MANIFEST: The manifest wilf include exactly 1,804 tickets., HE&R will have an
adequate supply of tickets available for the Event as indicated on tha
manifest to be agreed upon by HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL and HE&R.

BOX OFFICE CHARGE: HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees fo pay TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS
($200.00) for Box Office services unless special services, cancellations,
etc., naecessitates added costs to HE&R.

CREDIT CARD FEES: THIS PARAGRAPH INTENTIONALLY DELETED

FACILITY FEE: THIS PARAGRAPH INTENTIONALLY DELETED

TAXES: THIS PARAGRAPH INTENTIONALLY DELETED

TICKET HANDLING

FEES: THIS PARAGRAFPH INTENTIONALLY DELETED

TICKETMASTER: THIS PARAGRAPH INTENTIONALLY DELETED

CONCESSFIONS | MERCHANDISE / PARKING:

4.1. HE&R reserves the exciusive right to control concessions, including, but not limited to, foad,
beverage, parking, and all catering functlons.
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4.2.

4.3,

4.4,

Food and beverage is not permitted in the auditorium of HERSHEY THEATRE at any time,
Additional clean-up charges wiil be assessed if necessary

THIS PARAGRAPH INTENTIONALLY DELETED
THIS PARAGRAPH INTENTIONALLY DELETED

4.5 HE&R has final approval of all merchandise displays or product sold within HERSHEY THEATRE.

If vendors other than HERSHEY THEATRE vendors are used, HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees
that they will be dressed apprapriately in keeping with HE&R's policy of creating a good public
image and abide by all MERSHEY THEATRE rules and policies

5. USE OF HERSHEY THEATRE { CONDITIONS { RESTRICTIONS:

5.1.

5.2,

5.3.

5.4,

5.5.

5.6,

8.7

58,

5.9,

HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL shall provide HE&R at Iaast fifieen (15) business days befare the first
day of the Event, a full and detailed outine for approvai by HE&R of ali Event and rider
raquirements, including stage, seating setups, and all such other information as may be required
by HE&R concemning the Event.

Events ai HERSHEY THEATRE shail end no later than 11:00 PM. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL
covenants and agrees that tha Event will not continue beyord the time specified above, Eastem
Standard Time or Easiern Daylight Saving Times, whichever is then in use, and further agrees that
should such Event confinue beyond such fime, HERSHEY HIGH SCHOCOL shall pay to HESR,
above and beyond that set forth in Paragraph 2 hereof, the sum of Five Hundred Dollars {$500.00}
for each hour, or any fraclon tharsof, that the Event extends beyond the aforesaid tme,

THIS PARAGRAPH INTENTIONALLY DELETED

HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL acknowledges that Pennsylvania has a public Mo Smoking law which
prehibifs anyone from smoking inside buildings. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees to ablde by
and actively enforce the No Smoking law inside HERSHEY THEATRE.

HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees that no lickets will be distribuied unless HE&R raceives in
advance of the schedulsd Evant, a signed copy of this Agreement, technical rider, and insurance
certificate.

In additien to the amcunts fisted above, HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL shall pay and reimburse
HE&R for all ather axpenses, all neceasary staffing, and ary and ail heip necessary for the Event.
HE&R retains the right to determine the appropriate source and number of all staff and security
parsonnel to operate the Event. The amount of the reimbursable expense, covered by this
Paragraph shall inciude the cost refemed to on the altached staffing and services sstimate,
identified as Event Estimate, which by this reference is incorporated herein, and shall be pald no
later than the time of settlemant for the Event or such earier time as is specified by HE&R. The
amounts reflected on the aftached Event Estimate staffing and services estimate are based on
information provided to HE&R at the formation of this Agreement and are subject to change.

HERSHEY HIGH SCHOQL is responsible for the proper use and care of HERSHEY THEATRE.
HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees to pay for the cost of any damage or repairs that may be
necessary as a result of the use of HERSHEY THEATRE by HERSHEY HIGH SCHOCOL,
raascnable wear and tear customary for such Event exceptad.

Any special events or performances, inciuding, but not limited to skating, biking, use of lasers,
fireworks/pyrotechnics, water, animals, and the like, must be approved by HE&R in writing sixty
(B0} days prior to event. Failure to comply with this Paragraph is a material breach of this
Agreement and grounds for immediate termination without notice or opportunity to cure.

Parking lots adjacent to HERSHEY THEATRE are not avallable for use on weekdays priar to
5:00 PM. Vehicles parked in these adjacent lots during the stated times are subject to towing at
vehicle owner's sole expense.  Under na circumstances are parking spaces marked "reserved”,
‘company car’, or "HET" to be usad.

5.10L HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL is not permitted to bring into HERSHEY THEATRE, er have delivered

to HERSHEY THEATRE, any outsida food of beverage.
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8.

8.

511 HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees that HE&R shall not be responsible for preventing public from
entering HERSHEY THEATRE during load-in or rehearsats. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL must
arrange for and reimburse HE&R for addltional security, if required. Additional security shall be
requirad io abide by tha tarms and conditlons set forth in this Agreement, and HERSHEY HIGH
SCHQOL shall indemnify and hold hanmless HE&R from any and all Claims {as definad in
Paragraph 7.1 below} that arise as a result of this additiona! security.

5.12.Except as otherwise agreed to by HE&R and HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL, HERSHEY HIGH
SCHOOL is responsible for providing, 2f its sole cost and expense, all materials, supplies,
equipment, and props necessary for the Event {the "HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL Property”). BE&R
shall not be responsible or fiable for any HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL Property that is lost, stolen, or
damaged. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOQL is responsible for insuring the HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL
Property against any and all such loss or damage.

5.13.HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees to remove all HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL Property or other
effects immediately after the completion of the Event. Any propery that is 1eft in, on, or around
HERSHEY THEATRE by HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL after a period of sevan {7} days fallowing the
Event shall be deemed abandoned and become the property of HEER to be used or disposed of
at the discretion of HE&R.

5.14. HE&R shall manage and control the operation of HERSHEY THEATRE at all times, including but
not limited to enforcament of all rules and regulations and/or applicabte law,

ALTERATIONS:

6.1. HERSHEY HIGH SCHQOL shall make no alterations or improvements of, or attachments of any
kind to HERSHEY THEATRE, without the prior approval of HE&R, which may be withheid or
conditioned in its sole discretion.

6.2. HE&R may, at any time, remodel, make alerations, additions, improvements, and repairs to the
whole or any part of HERSHEY THEATRE.

INDEMNIFICATION:

7.1. To the fuliest extent permitted by law, HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL shall indemnify, defend and hold
harmless HE&R, the Hershey Entertainment & Resorts Company, The M.8. Hershey Foundation,
and the owners, direclors, officers, employees, agenis, and affiliaied and related entities of each
("HE&R indemnities") from and against any and all claims, liability, injury, damage or expense
incurred, including reasonable attomeys' fees, expert fees, and costs of litigation {coliectively
referred to as “Claims") to the extent such Claims arse out of or ralats to HERSHEY HIGH
SCHOOL and/or artist's use of HERSHEY THEATRE, which shall include, but is nat limited to: (i)
any breach by HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL of this Agreement or any of HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL
warranfies or representations contained bereln, (I} any acts or omlssions by HERSHEY HIGH
SCHOOL, artist, or their employees, agents, subcontractors, or any other parson or member of the
Event production, (i) any merchandise or producis distibuted or sold by HERSHEY HIGH
SCHOOL andior artist, and (iv) Claims made by third parties against the HE&R Indemnities
alleging that any intellectual property provided to HE&R by HERSHEY HIGH SCHCOL for use in
connection with adveriising and promoting the Event Infringes a patent, trademark, or copyright
held by such parties.

7.2. To the fullest extent permitted by law, HE&R shall indemnify, defend, and hald harmiess
HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL, its owners, directors, officers, emplayees, and agents (“HERSHEY
HIGH SCHOOL Indemnities"} from and against any and all Claims to the extent such Claims arise
out of or refated to: (i) any breach by HE&R of this Agreement or any of HE&R's warranties or
representations contzined herein, (i} any acts or omissions by HE&R, its employees, agents, or
subcontractors, and {iii) Claims made by third parties against the HERSHEY H!GH SCHOOL
Indemnities alleging that any intellectual property provided to HERSHEY HiGH SCHOOL by
HE&R for use in connection with advertising and promoting the Event infringes a patent,
trademark, or copyright held by such parties.

INSURANCE:
8.1. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL, at its sole cost and expense, shall camy and mainiain throughout the

load in and load out datas, adequate insurance to cover its obligations under this Agrzement.
Such insurance shall include, but is not limited to:

4
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8.

{i) Commercial General Liability Insurance {including coverage for intellectual property
infringement claims) for limits of not less than Three Million Doltars {$3,000,000.00)
combined single limit for each single accumance and Five Million Dellars ($5,000,000.00)
aggregate;

{ii) Statutory Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liabfity Insurance in an amount not
lass than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00); and

{1y Autormobite Liability Insurance with a limit of not jess than Ong Milion Dollars
($1.000,000.00) combiried and covering all owned, non-owned and hired vehicles:

Insurance must be with companies licensed to do business in the Linited States and have an A. M.
Best's Financial Strength rating of A- Vil or better. All insurance policies must be written on an
occurrence pelicy form, HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL shall provide HE&R with a Certificate of
insurance as evidence of the insurance required in this Paragraph. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL
shall name Hershey Entertainment & Resorts Company and M.S. Hershey Foundation as
additional insureds on its liabillty. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOCL shall give RE&R reasonable, but
in ng evant less than thirty (30) days written notice bafore any cancellation, modification or material
change o any pelicylies) required under this Paragraph and renewal certificates shall be provided
at least ten (10) days prior to policy expiration. Neither the requiremert of HERSHEY HIGH
SCHOQL to carry and maintain insurance nor HE&R's acceptance of avidence of insurance wik in
any manner limit or qualify the liabifities and obligatlons assumed by HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL
under this Agreament.

FORCE MAJEURE EVENTS:

8.1. Nesither parly shall be held liable or responsible for any fallure or delay in the performance of its
obligations under this Agreement to the extent such failures or delays are caused by (i) acts of
war, (i) terrorism, (i) civil riots, (iv} acts of government, or {v} Acts of God (including, but not
limied to, floods, windstomns, and tomadoes) which make performance lllsgal or impossible
(collectively referred to as “Force Majeure Events"), The parties expressly acknowledge that Force
Majeure Events specifically exclude financial inability to perform, economic conditions, and avents
relating to a party's fault or negligence. Upon the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event, the
parties’ respective obligations hereunder will be excused fully, without any penalty, for the duration
of the Force Majeure Event and sach party shall bear its own costs incurred in connection with the
Agreement. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL understands and agrees that the HE&R Indemnities shalt
not be responsible or liable for any loss or damage to the HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL Property ss
a result of a Foree Majeure Event.

10. NOTICF OF BREACH:

1.

10.1. Each parly agrees to give the other party prompt writlen nolice of any alleged breach of the
Agreement, including any and ali riders and addenda attached therato, topether with a reasonable
appertunity to respond and to cure and/or resolve the same. In the event of an uncured breach,
the non-breaching party may, upon written notice, terminate the Agreement. Fach Party shafi
have, in addition to and not In lieu of the ramadies set forth harein, the right, if thers is an uncured
breach, to exercise all of its rights and remedies against the defauiting party, at law or in equity. Al
such rights and remedies may be exercised cumulatively or singly, at the dole discrefion of the
non-dafauiting party.

ADVERTISING / SIGNS / POSTERS:

11.1.If advertising is placed by HE&R, HE&R shall receive a fifisen percant {15%) handling charge of
the total amount of advertising dollars spent for the Evert. If HE&R does not place any
advertising, there will not be a charge.

11.2. If adverlising is not placed by HE&R, all adveriising must be submitted to HE&R for review and
approval before placement.

11.3.HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees to use the HEAR approved HERSHEY THEATRE logo on all
printed adverlisarnents.

11.4.HERSHEY HIGH S8CHOOL will not post or allow to be posted, any signs, cards or posters except
upon such display areas as HE&R may provide. Use of such areas is a non-exclusive right. Al
material Is subject to prior written approval of HEAR. HER&R retains tha right te sell and receive
advertising monies and sponsarships relating to the venue, as it deems appropriate in its sole
discretion.
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11.5. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOQOL shall notify HEER, in writing, of all national tour sponsgrs for the Event
upon the execution of this Agreement. All other sponsors for the Event musi be approved by
HE&R and cannot conflict with any existing or future exclusive sponsorship of HE&R andfor
HERSHEY THEATRE.

11.6. No stickers or materials with adhesive backing witl be distributed under any circumstances.

11.7. Only decorative, securely anchored Helium balloons are pamifted in HERSHEY THEATRE.
Belloon removal will be an additionat expense to HERSHEY HIGH SCHOGL.

COPYRI JICENSES / PERMISSION:

12.1.HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL represents and warmrants to HESR that. all copyright or trademark
protected programming/content, including but not fimited to choreography, music or dramatic
elamants, to be presented during the Event is owned by HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL or has bhean
duly ficensed to HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL by tha owners of all respective intellectual praperty, or
their representatives. In addition, HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL shall obtain, at its own expense, any
licenses and pay any royzlies which HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL may owe for the sale or
distribution of copyright or trademark pecteciad materal during the Event, If music is involved,
HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees to pay all music license fees, such as SESAC, ASCAP, EMI
and GMR fees, as necessary. In the event HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL does not pay the applicable
musi¢ license faes, HE&R will withhold such fees from the Event settlament amount and pay the
appropriate  performing rights arganizations. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL further agrees fo
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the HE&R Indemnities from and against any and alt Claims
that may arise in connaction with HERSHEY HIGH SCHQOL representations, warranties, and
obligations set forth in this Paragraph, including any fines, interest, or penaitles assessed by third-
parties.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:

13.1.HE&R reserves the rght to make announcements during intermission, or at another pre-
detarmined time as decided by HE&R, which would relate briefly to future events at HERSHEY
THEATRE. HEAR Is also entlled to make such announcements, a8 it may deem necessary at
any time in the interest of public safety. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees that it will cooperate
and will cause artist and their smployees, subcontractors, agents and all other people or members
of the Event production to cooperate with the delivery of such announcements for public safaty,
including, but not kmited to, announcemants to reguire patrons fo raturn to their saats.

SERVIGES PROVIDED:

14.1, HE&R will provide at its sole cost, heating and overhead lighis Tor ordinary use. HE&R will provide
one (1} daily cleaning of all public areas prior to the Event and between performances for Events
with more than one {1} pedformance on a single day. Availabig dressing reorns and production
offices will be provided as part of the normal rental fee.

14.2, All additional or special services, including, but not limited to, technical staff, set-up of temporary
floor chairs, eraction of stage, rigging, bamiers, stagehands, or equipment rantal requested by
HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL shall be mutually agreed upon and paid for by HERSHEY HIGH
SCHOOQOL at the published rates on the Event Estimate,

PUBLIC SAFETY:

151, HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOQL agraas that at all times it will conduct its activities with full regard to
public safety, and will observe and abide by all applicable laws, rufes, and regulations and
requests by duly authorized govemnmental agencies respansible for public safety and with HE&R
to assure such safety.

15.2, Alf portions of the sidewalks, entries, doors, passages, vestibules, halls, corridors, stairways,
passageways, and all ways af access to public ulilities of the premiges shall be kept unobstructed
by HERSHEY HIGH 3CHOOL and shall not be used for any purpose other than ingress or egress
to and from the premises by HERSHEY MIGH SCHOOL, unless priotr written pemmission is
obtainad from HE&R.
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15.3. Loading doors are for ioading and unioading only. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL shall hot permit, or
be parmitted, to use the loading door as a form of egress for performers or patrons.

15.4. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOQL agrees not to bring onfo the premises any materiat, subsiances,
equipment or object which is lkely to andanger the fife of, ar cause bodily injury to, any person on
the premises or which is likely to constitute a hazard 1o properiy thereon, including, but not limited
to, pyrotechnic displays, without the prior written approvai of HE&R, which may be withheld or
conditoned in HE&R's sole discretion. ANl material brought in must mest Fire Department and
lecal regulations, and it will be the sole respansibility of HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL to obtain
approval of such material from the jurisdiction having authority.

15.5. Theatra opens sixty {6J) minutes prior to show; seafing opans thirly {30} minutes prior to
show, In orderto ensure the safety of its guests and to allow for an adequate amount of time {o
perform pecessary security maasures, Hershey Theatre will open the house at least 30 minutes
prior to the curtain. No exceptions will be made. HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL agrees that they will
not interfere with any Hershay Theatre security measures and , If necessary, agree to hold the
curtain a reasonabie amount of time after the designated pedformance time to allow for such
security measures to be completed.

PERFORMANCE APPROVAL :

16.1. HE&R retains the right to approve the parformanca, exhibition, of entertainment to be offered
pursuant to this Agresment and HERSHEY HiGH SCHOOL agrees that no such activity or part
thereof shall be given or held it HE&R delivers fo HERSHEY HIGH SCHOCL written abjection on
the grounds the activity violates criminal siatutes, falls o uphold event advertising claims, or
viclates content restriction imposed by HE&R in good faith.

COMPLIANGE WITH L AWS AND REGULATIONS:

17.1, HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOA agreas o comply with all spolicable laws, ordinancas {including, bt
not imited to the Derry Township Transiant Retail Business Ordinance, ¥ applicabie), rules, and
regulations adopted or established by federal, state, or locat governmental agencies or bodies and
with all HERSHEY THEATRE rules and regulations.

ASSIGNMENT:

18.1.HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL shali not encumber or assign this Agreement or any part thereof or
sublet HERSHEY THEATRE or any portion theraof, without the prior written consent of HE&R,
which may be withheld or conditioned in s sole discretion.

STATUS OF PARTIES:

18.1. The relatlonship of the parties shall be that of landlord and tenant and nothing herein shall be
canstrued to make HE&R and HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL partnars or joint venturers.

BINDING EFFECT:

20.1. This Agreement becomes null and void if not signed and returned within sixty {60) days of issue
date or thirty (30) days before Event date, whichever ecowrs first.  If a signed copy of this
Agreement is not received by such dates, the Event date{s) will ba released and become svailable
for other events.

20.2. This Agreerment shall be binding on the parties and their respective successors and asgigns.

GOVERNING LAW f VENUE;

21.1, This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The parties herato consent and agree that alt lsgal proceedings
relating to the subject matter of this Agreement shail te maintained in the Court of Common Pleas
of Dauphin County, Pennsylvania, or, if applicable, the United States District Court for the Middle
District of Pennsylvania {Harrisburg division}, and both partles consent and agree that jurisdiction
and venue for such proceedings shall lie exclusively with such courts.
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SEVERABILITY / NO WAIVER:

22 1_The provisions of this Agreement are severable, and should any provisicn thereof be determined
fo be invalid, that shall not set aside any other provision of this Agraement,

22.2. No waiver by either party of a breach or default under this Agreement shall be deemed a waiver by
stch party of 2 subsequent breach or default of like or similar nature.

SURVIVAL.

23.1. The obligations of the parties set forth in this Agreement that by their terms extend beyond or
suivive the temmination or expiration of the term of this Agreement shall not be affected or
diminished in any way by the termination or expiration of the Evant or this Agreemant.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT:

24.1. This Agreement represents the antire understanding betwaen the parties and supersedes all
previous representations, understandings, or agreements, oral oF written, between the parties with
respect to this subject matter and cannot be modified except by a written instrument signed by
both pariies.

24.2, Tne parties agree that receipt by fax or emait of this Agreament signed by the other party is legally
binding and such fax or email copy is legally equivalent to the orginal for any and all purpases,
including ftigation, This Paragraph doas not apply if the fax or email copy of the Agreement Is not
legible and easily readable.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, and intending to he legally bound, the paries have executed this
instriment as of the date of the last signature below.

HERSHEY ENTERTAINMENT & RESORTS HERSHEY HIGH SCHOOL
COMPANY, as agent for M.8, HERSHEY 717-534-2501
FOUNDATION

DocuSigned by: C%_/

) _LABE_D12942B1B44E... f
Name: Vikki Hubtquist Mame: Joseph McFarand
Title: GM, Attractions & Entertainment Title: Superintendent -
Derry Township School District

Date; February 12, 2020 Date: &!l“!i“l",h_
DN -



Millersville University of Pennsylvania
Internship Affiliation Agreement

This agreement establishes the relationship between Millersville University of Pennsylvania (referred to as the

"University"), an educational institution in the State System of Higher Education, Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and
Derry Township School District, PO Box 898, Hershey High School, Hershey PA 17033 (referred to as the
"Organization"). The University offers degree programs in a wide variety of disciplines, which are academically
enhanced by practical experiences outside of the traditional classroom setting. For this agreement the Organization
shall provide practical experience pursuant to the terms of this agreement and serve as an internship site offering

facilities, resources, and supervision to University students. Both parties agree to the following:

I. Duties and Responsibilities of the University

1.

The University will be responsible for internships that are conducted during a regular academic semester(s) or
scheduled summer term(s). The University and the organization agree to schedule the internship hours to
mutually benefit all parties involved and to conform to the scheduling formula of a minimum of 120 hours to
450 hours for 12 to 15 weeks; based on the minimum hours required by the University student’s major or minor
department to earn academic credits for the experience.

. The University shall certify eligibility for University students registering internships for academic credit. Approved

students will have the appropriate educational background and skills consistent with the advertised internship and
departmental requirements for participation.

. The University determines the amount of academic credit to be earned through the internship and establishes

all academic requirements that the University student must meet to earn the credit. The University establishes
a grading system and criteria to earn the grade upon completion of theinternship.

. The University will assign a faculty member to monitor and evaluate the student’s performance during

the internship. The University will assume all costs associated with faculty supervision of the University
student intern.

. The University, at the beginning of the internship term, will provide the Organization with all evaluation

materials and the expected timeline for submission.

. The University agrees to advise students of any known policies, procedures, and requirements of the internship

as specified by the Organization.

. The University, at the beginning of the internship term, will inform the Organization of course requirements such

as the intern’s attendance at meetings/seminars or activities that may take the intern away from the assignment.

. The University may request termination of the internship placement for any student not complying with

University guidelines and procedures for the internship program, as long as the Organization has been notified
in advance.

. The Organization understands that as an Agency of the Commonwealth, the University is prohibited from

purchasing insurance. As a public university and state instrumentality there is no statutory authority to
purchase insurance and it does not possess insurance documentation. Instead, it participates in the
Commonwealth’s Tort Claims Self-Insurance program administered by the Bureau of Risk and Insurance
Management of the Pennsylvania Department of General Services. This program covers
Commonwealth/University-owned property, employees and officials acting within the scope of their
employment, and claims arising out of the University’s performance under this Agreement, subject to the
provisions of the Tort Claims Act, 42 Pa.C.5.A. §§8521, etseq.

10. The University shall ensure that all students placed at the Organization are aware of their obligations under

the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974, as amended (20 U.S.C. 1232g; 34 C.F.R. Part 99) to
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Millersville University of Pennsylvania
Internship Affiliation Agreement

maintain confidentiality of pupil educational records of the Organization.
11. All University students placed with the Organization shall comply with the policies, procedures, handbooks
and directives of the Board of School Directors and Administration of the Organization.

Il. Duties and Responsibilities of the Organization
1. The Organization agrees to prepare an internship job description that outlines the duties and responsibilities
of the intern. The University will use this document to determine the suitability of the internship for academic
credit. Should changes to the job description be necessary after the internship is approved, the Organization
agrees to notify the University of such changes.
2. The Organization agrees to notify the University of all selection criteria and any requirements of the selection
process including but not limited to background investigations, drug testing, health screenings etc.
3. The Organization selects interns based on the Organization’s needs and preferences.
The Organization determines the schedule that the intern will maintain on premises. The total scheduled
hours will comply with standards established by the University for the award of credit hours. The minimum
internship is 120 to 450 hours for a semester or summer term based on the student’s major orminar.
5. No Entitlement to Benefits. The University acknowledges and agrees that students placed with the
Organization pursuant to this agreement shall not be considered, nor shall they ever become during the
term of their placement with the Organization by the University, employees of the Organization. Under no
circumstances shall University students be entitled to any right, compensation or employee benefit of any

kind whatsoever from the Organization. University acknowledges and agrees that it shall inform students
accordingly prior to their placement with the Organization.
6. The Organization agrees to provide suitable workspace and resources for the intern to complete the
internship assignment. The Organization will also provide grientation, training, supervision and evaluation of

the intern.

7. The Organization shall provide all reasonable information requested by the University on a student’s
internship performance. If there are any student evaluations, they will be completed and returned according
to any reasonable schedule agreed to by the University and the Organization

8. The Organization agrees to make every possible accommodation to the University’s request for a faculty site
visit during the internship. The Organization also agrees to allow the intern to attend university required

internship meetings/seminars during the internship.
9. Organization shall report any incident in which a student is the victim of sexual assault, dating violence,
domestic violence, stalking or sexual harassment to the University Title IX Coordinator, Elizabeth Swantek,
@ - 717-871-4100. The Organization shall identify resources, such as medical
care and counselling, that may be available to any student who has been the victim of sexual assault, dating

violence, domestic violence or stalking.

10. The Organization agrees to cooperate with the University in any investigation of an allegation of
discrimination and to report to the University any known incident in which the University student is the
victim of sexual assault dating violence, stalking or sexual harassment.

11. Removal of Noncompliant Student. The Organization shall have the authority to immediately remove a

student whose conduct or work with others is inconsistent with the policies and procedures of the
Organization, whose conduct or actions is detrimental to the mission of the Organization, or who otherwise
fails to comply with Organization policies, procedures or directives from Organization personnel. If such a
removal occurs, the Organization will immediately contact the responsible University Faculty Supervisor.
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Millersville University of Pennsylvania
Internship Affiliation Agreement

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision of this Agreement, the Organization reserves the right to
refuse placement of any student for any lawful, nondiscriminatory reason whatsoever.

Il. Mutual Terms and Conditions

1. This Agreement will last for 5 vears from the date of the final signature below. The University or the
Organization may terminate this Agreement with or without cause for any reason by providing ninety (90) days
advance written notice to the other party. Either party may immediately terminate this Agreement in the
event of a substantial breach. However, should the Organization terminate this Agreement prior to the
completion of an academic semester, all students enrolled at that time may continue their educational
experience until it would have been concluded absent the termination, subject, however, to the Organization’s
ability to immediately remove a noncompliant student consistent with Paragraph 11, above.

2. The parties agree to continue their respective policies of nondiscrimination based on Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 in regard to sex, age, race, color, creed, national origin, Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972 and other applicable laws, as well as the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities
Act.

3. The laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania shall govern this Agreement.

The relationship between the parties to this Agreement to each other is that of independent contractors.
The relationship of the parties to this contract to each other shall not be construed to constitute a
partnership, joint venture or any other relationship, other than that of independent contractors.

5. Neither of the parties shall assume any liabilities to each other. As to liability to each other or death to persons,
or damages to property, the parties do not waive any defense as a result of entering into this contract. This
provision shall not be construed to limit the Commonwealth's rights, claims or defenses which arise as a matter
of law pursuant to any provisions of this contract. This provision shall not be construed to limit the sovereign
immunity of the Commonwealth or of the State System of Higher Education or the University. Except as
otherwise provided in this Agreement, under no circumstance shall either party be liable to the other party for
consequential, indirect or punitive damages or specific performance arising from a breach of this Agreement.
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed a direct or
indirect waiver of or limitation to any sovereign or governmental immunity, in any respect, applicable to either
party (including, without limitation, under the Pennsylvania Political Subdivision Tort Claims Act), or impose
liability, directly or indirectly, on either party from which it would otherwise be immune under applicable law.

6. This Agreement represents the entire understanding between the parties. This Agreement shall only be
madified in writing with the same formality as the original Agreement.
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Millersville University of Pennsylvania
Internship Affiliation Agreement

The authorized representatives of the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date indicated below.

Millersville University of Pennsylvania

Authorized Signature
Vilas A. Prabhu, Provost & VP
for Academic Affairs

EFFECTIVE DATE OF AGREEMENT: (date of last

signature)
/ /

Approved by PASSHE Legal Counsel 1/31/20

7623494 |

Derry Township School District

A lAL Y __}_,h_,._

Authorized Signature
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Print Title

Modified August 2019
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OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT
FOR DISTRICT CLASSROOM SPACE — El, PRESCHOOL
This agreement for the operation and maintenance of the facilities identified below is

entered into between the Derry Township School District (“District”), and the Capital Area

Intermediate Unit (“Infermediate Unit’).

The District, in consideration of the payment hereinafter mentioned, intends to operate
and maintain space for use by the Intermediate Unit for instructional purposes in the Early

Intervention (El) preschool program, in the location(s) listed below:

# OF
BUILDING LOCATION CLASSROOMS TYPE OF PROGRAM
Hershey Primary Elementary 1 El, Preschool

These classrooms shall be equipped with basic furniture for both pupils and teachers, and
shall be operated and maintained by the District in the same manner as it maintains regular
district classrooms including, but not limited to, cleaning of bathrooms and classrooms, emptying
trash on a regular basis, and regular maintenance and upkeep. In addition, all utilities shall be

provided and paid for by the District.

The term of this Operation and Maintenance Agreement is for one (1) year for the period
of July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 (“contract year’). District shall notify Intermediate Unit of any
building closings during the agreement year within one half hour (1/2 hour) of making the decision
to close. If the Intermediate Unit intends not to renew this agreement for an additional year, the
Intermediate Unit shall notify the District in writing on or before June 1 of the current contract
year. |If the District intends pot to continue this contract, the District shall so notify the
Intermediate Unit in writing prior to March 1 of the year in which the agreement would otherwise

terminate.

The Intermediate Unit Program Supervisor will create and review a Building Agreement
with the District Principal on an annual basis. The purpose of the Building Agreement is to
operationalize the day-to-day procedures, practices, and communications between the

Intermediate Unit and the District.

All notifications to the District must be made to [ /) ) /o Jroit at the following
4

address: ) /30y 395 s, A 033 ; email address: J/H s rdnrd e rshwet, £.23 oy

-

Capital Area Intermediate Unit 55 Miller Street, Enolg, PA 17025-1640 tel 7177328400 Ffax 7177328414 tdd 717732.8422 www.caiu.org
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All notifications to the Intermediate Unit must be made in writing to Alicia M. McDonald,
Director of Student Services, at the following address: CAIU Enola Office, 55 Miller Street, Enola,
PA 17025-1640; email address: amcdonald@caiu.org.

For purposes of this agreement an email between two individuals above-listed shall satisfy
the requirement for notification in writing. It is further agreed that the Intermediate Unit shall pay
to the District for each classroom provided, equipped and maintained as indicated above, the sum
of $3,500 for a total of $3,500. This amount shall be paid during March of the contract year.

The District and the Intermediate Unit mutually agree that neither one shall be liable to the
other for any loss or damage that may be sustained by either one of them whether or not due to
the negligence of either, and each party waives the right to recovery against the other for any
such loss or damage that may occur during the term of the Operation and Maintenance

Agreement or any extension or renewal thereof.

In the event a student served by the Intermediate Unit in a District classroom is
responsible for having caused physical damage to District property, the District shall bill the

Intermediate Unit the cost of repairs only, with no markup for profit, lost time, or the like.

The terms and conditions of this agreement shall not be changed or altered except by a

writing signed by an authorized representative of each party at the time of such change.

Each party, as indicated by the signatures of their authorized representatives below,

hereby accepts this agreement in its entirety.

Date: 7 ; JD}QD By: —T/T/LU&./ ,37674&

DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOQL DISTRICT
Name: [Nk S {'f 'l('){f,a"
Titte: /1 Ce [Presidean

Date: By: ¥ //ﬂ‘ / ; /@ %
ZAPITAL AREAINTERMEDIATE UNIT
Dr. Andria Saia

Executive Director

Leases / opmaintagreement-ps-DTSD 2019-20.doc
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFORT

Board of School Directors
Derry Township School District
Hershey, Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statements

‘We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Derry Township School
District {the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is tesponsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
ETTor.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 1s to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Aunditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the enfity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An avdit also includes evalvating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

Camp Hill, PA = Corlisle, PA = Chambersburg, PA = State Collage, PA



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of Derry Township School District, as of June 30, 2019,
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the vear then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Managemeni’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 12, and the required supplementary information as listed in
the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statemnents, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses (o our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Derry Township School District’s basic financial statements. The Combining Balance Sheet -
Capital Projects Funds, Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Capital Projects Funds and the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required
by Title 2 U8, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, listed in the table of contents as Supplementary
Information, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relates directly to the vnderlying accounting and other records vsed to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
andit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

[



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Govermneni Audiring Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 24,
2019, on our consideration of Derry Township School District's internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contract and grant
agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
nternal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of Derry Township School District’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Gavernment Auditing Standards in considering Derry Township School District’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

T i, v B

Camp Hill, Pennsylvania
December 24, 2019



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
Year-Ended June 30, 2019

The Management, Discussion, and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overall review and insight into the
District’s financial activities for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, This MD&A summarizes
the district’s financial performance as a whole. Therefore, the reader should also review the entire
finaneial statements, including the Notes to Financial Statements, as well as the independent auditor’s
transmittal letter, to enhance their understanding of the district’s financial performance.

Backaground

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting model adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Certain condensed comparative
analyses of financial statements have been presented 1n these statements,

Pre-GASB 34 standards required use of the modified accrual system of accounting for revenues (no
receivablesfaccruals beyond 60 days). In addition, pre-GASB 34 standards also did not record
depreciation expense on capital assets and did not require reporting of net assets of various funds. GASB
34 now requires full accrual of revenue and caleulating depreciation on capital assets.

Financial Highlights

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, the District has recorded as a Permanent Fund the fair
market value of assets held in trust by Fulton Financial Advisors under a bequest made by Milton S.
Hershey. As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, the value of this fund was $43,732,076 and $43,892,352,
respectively. The fund balance is classified as “Nonspendable™ due to the restrictive nature of the trust
since the District has use of income only.

Also in accordance with GASB 54, the Board of School Directors adopted Policy 620, Fund Balance.
This policy classifies the General Fund Balance based on the relative strength of constraints that control
the purposes for which specific amounts can be spent. Effective June 30, 2012, fund balances are now
reported in the following classifications:

Nonspendable Amounts that cannot be spent because they are in a nonspendable form (such as
inventory and notes receivable),

Restricted Amounts limited by external parties (grants or donations).
Committed Amounts limited by Board policy (future anticipated costs),
Assigned Amounts intended for a particular purpose.

Unassigned Amounts available for consumption or not restricted in any manner.

Board Policies 625 and 625.1 limit amounts that may be accumulated in the General Fund. Policy 625,
Maintenance of Fund Balance, provides that the District shall maintain an unassigned General Fund
Balance of pot less than 3% of expenditures, and not more than the amount allowed by the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, currently 8% of budgeted expenditures. Policy 625.1 established a
Capital Reserve Fund to support the District’s approved Capital Maintenance/Growth Plan, to which
funds in excess of the amount determined under Policy 625 is transferred. In accordance with these
policies, $850,000 and $2,494,887 was transferred as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
Year-Ended June 30, 2019

The accompanying Fund Balance Review, on page 6, summarizes General Fund activity for the current
and prior year. Unassigned Fund Balance increased by $229,780 and $38,165 for the years ended June
30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, after transfers in accordance with Policy 625 noted above,

The District has committed a portion of the General Fund Balance for future state retirement costs and for
the District’s selfeinsured medical plan. The committed portion of the General Fund Balance for furure
retirement costs and for the District’s self-insured medical plan is $2,384,692 and $500,000, respectively,
for both years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

DERRY TOWNSEHIF SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSEION AND ANALYSIS
FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 AND 1018

FUND BALANCE EEVIEW
Momspendable Norspendsble  Comentred  Commatied Total Capital Mospendabls
[nventory & Mote Retireiret Health Unassigned General Progects Permanent
Propaids Receivable  Stabiliomion Benefiie Gegeral Fued Eund Fued
Fand Balance - 63017 § 167507 % 4307010 8 23R4652 8 SO0000 5 SC25B35 8 EEIET4S 5 S4TADER 8 41407411
2] T-2008 Activity
Tocaease (Decrexse) [ERIE)] {120,577} - - 38.163 (85.825) 1322077 1484921
Fund Ealanee - 63018 164,094 330,134 23B4452 300,000 5,044,000 441520 6797178 43,892,332
218-2019 Activiey
Tncresae (Decrexse) (4.935) (63 23R) - - 215780 161,606 3,750,341 {160,278y

Fund Balapce - 630019 § 159138 % 16689 5 1384692 5 500000 § 5293780 5 B604526 5 103473517 5 43731076

2018-2019 revenues from all sources, local, state, federal and other exceeded budgeted revenues by
$776.317, or about |.2%. Unanticipated revenue from earned income tax, real estate transfer tax
collection and a one-time payment received from PPL Electric Company was the reason actual revenues
exceeded budgeted revenues from local sources.

2018-2019 actual expenditures exceeded budget expenditures by $130,396, including $830,000
transferred to the Capital Reserve Fund in accordance with Policy 625 noted above. Positive budget
varlances for both revenues and expenditures were the reasons the District was able to make the transfer
into the Capital Reserve Fund; the most significant variances are shown in the Spending Review on page
11,



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
Year-ended June 30, 2019

Annual Financial Report

The governmental statements consist of the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.
These governmental stalements combine governmental activities with business-tvpe activities. The
governmental activities include most of the District’s programs and operations such as instruction,
support services, plant operation and maintenance, pupil transportation and extracurricular activities. The
business activities include services provided on a charge basiz to recover the expenses of the services
provided. The food service enterprise fund is reported as a business-type activity.

The Statement of Net Assets is a government-wide statement that summarizes the District’s assets and
liabilities 1 their entirety. It includes capital assets, net of a provision for accumulated depreciation, as
well as long-term debt (mainly bonds payable).

The Statement of Activities is a government-wide statement that summarizes expenditures among the
eight largest functions, as well as each program’s net cost (total cost less subsidies, revenues generated by
the activity, wnrestricted grants and contributions by other organizations). It includes depreciation expense
not previously recorded, and interest expense previously reported only in the debt service fund., The
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet includes only assets expected to be used or consumed, and liabilities
which will be due during the next year. Neither capital assets nor long-term debt are included. Note 1B
to the Financial Statements explains the financial statements presentation in detail.

Fund Financial Statements

The Funds Statements present financial information in greater detail than the District-wide statements.
Major funds ave reported in separate colunns, while non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a
single colwmn.

Governmental Funds are used to report most of the District’s activities and focus on the flow of cash and
other assets to and from the funds, and the remaining fund balances at the end of the fiscal year, which are
available to be used in future periods. The governmental funds use the modified accrual method of
accounting that measures cash and assets that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental funds
provide a detailed short-term view of the District’s operations and the services it provides. Governmental
fund information helps the reader determine If there are greater or less financial resources that can be
spent in the pear future to finance the District’s programs. The relationship (or differences) between
governmental activities reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities and
governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements,

Proprietary Funds are used to report District activities that are simular to business operations in the private
sector. The Food Service Fund and the Granada Project Fund are the District’s proprietary funds,
Proprietary funds use the accrual method of accounting: therefore, proprietary fund reports will maich, in
all essential respects, the business-type activities portion of the government-wide statements.

Permanent Funds are nsed to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings,
and not principal, are used to support school programs. The District is a beneficiary under the will of
Milton S, Hershey and receives quarterly income distributions calculated annually at approximately 5% of
the March 31 market value, in accordance with procedures established by the Pennsylvania Attorney
General. The distributions support the overall academic programs of the District.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
Year-ended June 30, 2019

Fiduciary Funds are those funds that the District is the trustee, or fiduciary. Donations or bequests
designated for scholarships are the primary fiduciary funds. Donors specify how the funds may be used.

Since the funds may not be used for any other purpose, they are excluded from other District funds
because the District is prohibited from using these funds to finance any other activities. The Distriet's

fiduciary activities are reported in separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position.

The analysis of the District's major finds provides detailed information about the most significant funds -
not the District as a whole. Some funds are required by state statute, while other funds are established by
the District to help manage money for particular purposes and compliance with various grant provisions.
The District's four types of funds: governmental, proprietary. pennanent and fiduciary, use different
accounting approaches as further described in the notes to the financial statements.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT AND DISCUSSION ANATYSIS
FISCAL YEARS ENDED JINE 30, 2019 AND 2018

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
2019 2018
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Assets and Deferred Outflows
Current and Other Assets 70,750,312 % 732,965 § 71483277 5 69,933,393 3 101,514 70,034,907
Capital Asscts 76.561.103 366,748 76,927,851 79,920,831 394,419 80,315.250
Deferred Outflow of Resources 16.479.095 363.240 16,842,335 18,283,435 387,755 18,671.190
Total Assets and deferred outflows 163.790.510 § 1462933 § 165253463 § 168137639 § BR3.688 169,021,347
Liabilitics and Deferred Inflows
Current Liabilities 11827018 & 03,305 £ 11921313 §  14,825242 H (332,750} 14,492 492
Non-Current Liabilities 139,642,286 2,536,948 142,179,234 141,788,714 2,397,507 144,186,221
Deferred Inflows of Resources 2712493 62,942 2,775,435 992,550 21,324 1,013,874
Total Liabilities and deferred inflows 154 182 697 % 2,693 285 § 156875082 $ 157,606.506 E 2086081 159,692 587
Net Position:
DNet investment in capital assets 47,672,912 4 366,748 § 48039660 5 46927377 3 304,419 47,321,796
Restricted 31,170,920 5 51170920 30,689,528 - 50,689.528
Unrestricted (89.236.019) (1,597.080) (90.833,009) (87,085.752 (1,506.812) (88.682.564)
Total Net Position 3 9607813 F (1,230,332} §  B.37TAS1 3 10,531,153 §  (1.202,393) 9,328,760




DERRY TOWMSHIF SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT AND DISCTISSION AND ANALYSIS
FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2018

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

2019 2018
Govemmental Business-Tvpe Gorvernmantal Bustness-Typa
Activities Activities Taial Activities Actrvities Tital
Bevanues:
Program Reverues
Charges for Sarvices and Salas 5 621,552 18306884 % 2,553,236 536,533 £ 2083720 S 2620251
Orperating Grants and Contribuons 12,267,591 535,243 13,002 834 12,174,075 501,596 12,675,671
Total Progrars Fevetges: 13,090,143 2465927 15.556.070 12,710,608 2,585,310 15295924
‘Genaral Revenues, Transfars and Special frem:
Property Tames 35,254,582 2 18,254,582 37.072,880 z 37,072,880
Act 511 Taxes 9628995 - 2,628,995 9,372,547 - 5,372,547
State Property Taxx Relief G68E.6TT ~ 668,677 671,338 = 671,338
Tnvectmant Earnings 1,947,187 2447 1,949,634 % 560,703 - 3 560,703
Mliscallaneous 370,508 25429 335937 684,729 = 634,729
Gain on Daspesal of Fined Assets 28891 - 28,891 14,650 - 14,650
Transfers (43,2173 43,217 - (85,153) £5,183 -
Special item - LEA joing venturs uy-in - - - 350,729 - 590,729
Total General Revenues, Transfers and
Special Tteen. 50,855,603 71,093 50,926,716 51,882,902 85.183 51,967,585
Total Revenuess: 63,945,766 2,537,020 &6,432, 786 64,593,010 2,670,499 67,263,509
Esxpanses
Program Expenses:
Instruction 39,724,710 x 39,724,710 38.527.749 % 38.527.749
Inatructional srudent suppott 6,098,600 = 609,660 5,540,907 = 5.840.967
Administrative and financial support services 7397282 - 7397282 7.483.551 - 7483551
Oparation and maintenance of plant services 6092029 = 6,092,029 5,878,732 - 5,676,732
Pupil wansporatics 2,943,785 = 2,943,785 3125478 3 3125478
Student actrviiies LETD 402 = 1870402 1,706,532 * L.706,532
Community seraces 10,010 : 10,010 E,264 - E264
Food Service - 2,082,502 2,082,502 3 1,880,905 1,880,505
Granada Project = 482,457 482 457 - 159,954 755,954
Total Program Expensss: 113587 I.564,950 &6.101,857 62,577,273 2.640,853 65,218,133
Interast and Fiscal Charges 732,228 - 732228 823 870 - 93,870
Unallocated Depreciation Expence - - - - - -
Total Expenses 4,869,106 2.564.959 67,434,065 63471143 2,640,859 66,112,002
Increase (Dacraasa) i Net Position (923,340) (27.939) (951,275) 1121867 29,640 1,151,507
Mot Posstion - Begnmng (2= praviously raported) 10,531,153 (1,202,393} 9328760 17,655,230 (948,863) 16,706,367
Prior Pariod Admustrmans - - - (8345 544) (285,170 (5526 114)
Nat Position - Beginning (a5 restated) 10,531,153 (1202383} 5,328 760 2,405 286 (1,.232.035) 8177253
el Positicn - Ending 5 9,007,813 (230350 ¥ 8,377,451 10,531,153 (1.202,393) & 0,318,700




DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
Year-ended June 30, 2019

District Budget

The District’s budget is prepared in accordance with Pennsylvania law and is based on accounting for
certain transactions based on cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances. The most significant
budgeted fund is the General Fund. The budgeting system controls expenses by classifying expenses by
functional areas and by tvpe of expense. A summary of budget to actual results for 2018-2019 is shown
in the review below:

DERRY TOWNSHIF SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
GENERAL FUND SPENDING REVIEW

Budgeted Amounts Vartance with
Original Finual Actual Final Budgst
Budget Budget Amounts Pos (MNeg)
REVENLIES
6000 Local Sources 5  4B604082 § 4EGO40E2 5 40505851 S OO00ETD
7000 State Sources 12024 657 12,024,657 11,734,780 {28977}
8000 Federal Sowces B4 000 B4 000 972317 123317
9000 Other Fmancing Sources 1.817.286 1817286 1.854.284 36,908
Total Revenues 53,260,025 63,280,925 64,067,242 176317
EXPENDITURES
1100 Regular Programs 26,074,839 26,062,359 25,044 654 1,007,705
1200 Special Programs 7,652,365 7,654,300 8,132,837 {438,537)
1300 Vocational Programs 1421336 1,421,336 1,330,454 Q0,882

1400 Cther Instruchional Programs 32402 140,336 (L7,934)

1700 Commumty College 857 189,040 33,817
2100 Pupil Pargennel 1118302 1.957 683 160,700
2200 Instructional Staff Services 2,307,087 1312437 2477 650 {165,213}
2300 Admumstative Services 4.300,027 4,308,157 3.996.002 311255
2400 Pupil Health BR5.471 886.421 1L.006 366 {112.945)
2300 Business Services 906294 006,294 812,254 94,040
2600 Plent Operation & Mamtensnce 5583189 5.583.169 5,683,034 (99 865)
2700 Pupil Transportation 1009 746 3,009,746 2,495 730 SE4,007
2800 Central 1836252 1,836,252 1.767 404 68 B48
2500 Other Support Services 51,512 51,512 51,596 (Ba)
3200 Student Activities 1.556,746 1.557.246 L668,020 {110,774}
3300 Comanumty Services 93179 9379 8955 424
5110 Debt Service 285,750 285,750 553,041 {267.201)
5120 Refimd of Prior Yems Receipts - . 68,933 (68,953)
5200 Interfund Transfers 54645123 5648223 6.520.718 {872 495)
Total Expandinares 4,036,232 64,036 232 63,905 636 130,596
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 3 (745,307} § (745.307) § 161,606 § 5,913

As noted earlier, 2018-2019 actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by $776,317. The most
significant positive revenue variances were collections of earned income tax, delinguent real estate tax,
real estate transfer tax, increase in federal subsidy and a one-time payment received from the Harrisburg
City School District.

2018-2019 actnal expenditures were less than budgeted expenditures by $130,596, not including a
$850,000 transfer to the Capital Reserve Fund. The most significant favorable expenditure variances
were the salary and benefits ($1,017,705) for regular programs,



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
Year-ended June 30, 2019

Capital Asseis

The schedule below reflects capital assets owned by the District, net of accumulated depreciation. For comparative purposes, the schedule reflects both the
current and the preceding year.

DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 AND 2018
CAPITAL ASSETS (NET OF DEPRECIATION)

2019 2018
Governmental ~ Business-Type Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Land § 147274 % - § 1047274 b} 1047274 8 - b 1.047.274
Construction-in-progress 361.555 - 361,555 121,452 - 121,452
Site improvements 4,547,348 - 4,547,348 3.066,76% = 5.066,769
Building and building improvements 66,689,445 - 66,689,445 69.323.417 = 69,323,417
Furniture and equipment 3.915 481 366,748 4282229 4361919 394 419 4,756,338

§ 76561103 % 366,748 § 76917851 £ 79920831 § 394419 8§ 80315250




DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A)
Year-ended June 30, 2019

Debt

During 2018-2019 the District issued General Obligation Notes Series A and Series B of 2019, The
District’s eredit rating remains steady (Standard & Poor's Underlying AAA) places the District among
only a handful of Pennsylvania districts with that rating: no districts are rated higher,

Current Issmes

On June 27, 2006, Pennsylvania’s governor signed Act 1 of Special Session 2006 into law. This
legislation is far-reaching and complex and includes provisions for District property tax reduction funded
through gaming revenue, facilitates a tax reduction and possible tax shift though imposition of additional
earned income tax or personal income tax, requires voter approval through a “back end referendum™ for
real estate tax rate increases beyond a state-calculated index and created a Local Tax Study Commission
to submit a recommendation to the Board of School Directors regarding the tax shifting noted above, The
Act also requires adoption of a preliminary budget as much as six months earlier than in the past

The District is required to make contributions to the Pennsylvania State Employees Retirement System
(PSER.S) which covers substantially all employees. Contribution rates are projected to increase, Historic
rates have been as follows:

2013-2014 16.93%
2014-2015 21.40%
2015-2016 25 84%
2016-2017 30.03%
2017-2018 32.57%
2018-2019 33.43%

The Commaonwealth of Pennsylvania provides a subsidy for one-half of the retirement contributions.
Contacting the District Financial Management

Our financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, parents, students, staff, investors and
creditors with a general overview of the Derry Township School District’s finances and to show the
Board of School Directors’ accountability for the funds the District receives. Questions about this report
or requests for additional financial information should be directed to Michael Frentz, Business
Manager/School Board Secretary at Derry Township School District, 20A East Granada Avenue,
Hershey, PA 17033, (717) 534-2501.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2019
Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents § 21328517 § 507805 8§ 21836312
Taxes receivable - net of allowance 602,113 - 602,113
Duie from other governments 4,504 861 T958 4512819
Other receivables 156,691 140,342 297,033
Inventories 146,971 75,298 222.269
Prepaid expenditures 12,187 1,562 13.749
Note receivable - Township of Derry 64,015 - 64,015
Total current assets 26,815,355 732,965 27,548,320
Noncurrent Assets
Land 1.047,274 = L047.274
Consiruction-ln-progress 361,555 - 361555
Site improvements - net of accum. depreciation 547,348 c 4,547,348
Buildings and improvements - net of accum. depreciation 66689 445 - 66,689 445
Furniture and equipment - net of accum. depreciation 3.915481 366,748 4282229
Note receivable - Townshup of Derry 202 881 - 202,881
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust 43,732,070 - 43,732,076
Total noncurrent assets 120,496,060 366,748 120,862 B0E
Total assets 5 147311415 § 1099713 8 145411128
Deferved Outflows of Resources
Deferred amounts on pension liability 3 15436075 0§ 347232 0§ 15783307
Deferred amounts on OPEB liabilities 707,188 16,008 723,196
Deferred amounts related to refunding debt 335,832 - 335,832
Total defevred outflows of resenrces § 16479005 % 363,240 § 16842335
Total assets and deferved owtflows of resonrces 3 163,790,500 § 1462953 § 165253463

See Notes 1 Financial Statements.




Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Totals
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Internal balances 3 174,587 & (174587) § =
Aecounts pavable 1,509,060 183,461 1,692,521
Aceried salaries and benefits 5.351.103 TA41 5,358,544
Payroll deductions and withholdings 311,735 - 311,735
Uncamed revenue 11,299 T7.080 88.379
Current portion of long-term liabilifics 4,300,778 2 4,308,778
Accrued interest pavable 160,356 - 160,156
Total eurrent liabilities 11827918 03,308 11,921,313
Noncurrent Liabilities
Net pension liability 96,574.000 2,172,000 98,746,000
General obligation bonds 25,503,805 - 25,503,805
Anthority lease obligations 2,786,009 - 2,786,009
Accrued compensated absences 1,421.921 35272 1.477.193
Other postemployment benefits payable 13,336,551 309,676 13,666,227
Total noncurrent liabilities 139,642 286 2,536,948 142,179234
Total Habilities S 151470204 § 2630343  § 154,100,547
Deferved Inflows of Resources
Deferred amounts on pension liabiling 5 1494000 & 34000 § 1528000
Deferred amounts on OPEB liabilities 1.218.493 18,942 1,247,435
Total deferred inflows of resources 3 2,712,493 5 62942 § 2775435
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 5 47672912 8 366,748 % 48,039,660
Restricted 51,170.920 - 51,170,920
Unrestricted (89.236,019) (1,597,080) (90,833,009}
Total net position 3 9607813 § (1,230,332) § B37748l
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and net position 5 163790510 § 1462953 § 165253463




DERRY TOWNSHIF SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2019
Met (Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenue Changes in Net Assets
Operating Business-
Charges for ‘Girants and Governmental Type
Function/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental Activities:

Instruction 39724710 % 491635 9637684 5 (219.595,391) S - 5 (29.595.391)

Tnstructional student support 6,098,660 - 762,159 {3.336,501) - (5,336,301

Administrative and financial support services 7,397,282 - 605,478 (6,791,804) - (6, 791.504)

Operation and maintenance of plant services 6,002,029 28040 42932 {5,634,668) - {5,634,668)

Pupil transportation 2,943,785 - 621,852 (2.321.933) - (2.321,933)

Student activities 1,870,402 102,877 164,149 (1.603,376) - (1.603,376)

Community services 10010 - 1152 (8,858) ] (8.858)

Debt service 732,228 - 245,796 (486,432) - {4B5.432)
Total governmental activiries 64,869,106 622,552 12,467,591 (51,778,963) - (51,778.963)
Business-type Activities:

Food Service 2,082,502 1,135,766 535,243 - (411,493) (411,493)

Granada Project 482,457 794918 - - 312461 312461
Total buzsiness-type activities 2,564,950 1930684 535243 - (90,032) (00.032)
Total primary government 67434.065 § 2,553236 3 13.002.83d4 S (51,778,963) S (99.032) 5 (51,877.993)
General Revennes and Transfers:

Property taxes. levied for general purposes S 38354582 0% - 5 38254582

Act 511 taxes, levied for general purposes 9,628,905 - D.628.005

State property tax relief allocation 668,677 - 668,677

Investiment earnings 1.947.187 2.447 1.040.634

Gain on disposition of fixed assets 28,891 - 28,801

Miscellaneous income 370,508 25429 3950937

Transfers (43,217) 43217 -
Total general revenues and transfers 50.855.623 71,003 50.926.718
Changes in net position (923,340) (27,939) (251.279)
Net Position - July 1, 2018 10,531,153 (1.202.393) 9,328,760
Net Position - June 30, 2019 S5 94607,813 5 {1,230.333) 5 B.377.481

See Notes to Financial Statemnents.




DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2019

Major Funds
Totals
General Capital Permanent Governmental
Fund Projects Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents F 11438115 § 9890402 % - § 21,328,517
Taxes receivable - net of allowance 602.113 - - 602,113
Due from other funds 62,384 858,451 - 920,835
Due from other governments 4,504,861 - - 4,504,801
Other receivables 42,021 51,575 = 093,598
Inventories 146,971 - - 146,971
Prepaid expense 12,187 - - 12,187
Note receivable - Township of Derry 266.896 - - 266,896
Beneficial interest in perpetual trust - - 43.732.076 43.732.076
Total assets $ 17075548 5§ 10800428 S 43732076 $ 71,608,052
Linbilities
Due to other funds ¥ 1033038 3 - 3 - 3 1,033,038
Accounts pavable 1,256,149 252911 - 1,509,060
Accrued salaries and benefits 5351103 - - 5351103
Payroll deductions and withholdings 311,735 - - 311,735
Unearned revenue 11,299 e . 11,299
Total liahilities 7,063,324 252911 - £,216235
Deferred Inflows of Resonrces
Delinquent property taxes SO7.698 - - 507.698
Fund Balances
Nonspendable 426.054 - 43,732,076 44,158,130
Restricted - 10,547,517 - 10,547,517
Committed 2,B84.692 - - 2,884,652
Tnassigned 5,203,780 - - 5,203,780
Total fand balances 8,604,526 10,547,517 43,732,076 62,584,119
Total liabilities, deferved inflows of
resources and fund balances F 17.075.548 5 10800428 S5 43732076  § T1.608.052

See Notes to Financial Statements.




DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2019

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are
different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and.
therefore, are not reported as assets I governmental funds. The cost of the capital
assets is $156.825 758 and the accunmlated depreciation is $80,264 655,

Property taxes receivable will be collected, but are not available soon enough to pay
for the current period's expenditures. and therefore, are deferred inflows of resources
in the funds.

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to pensions are applicable to future
periods and, therefore, are not reported within the funds. Deferred inflows and
outflows related to the pension are as follows (see footnotes for detail):

Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred inflows of resources

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to OPEB are applicable to future
periods and, therefore, are not reported within the funds. Deferred inflows and
outflows related to OPEB are as follows (see footnotes for detaily:

Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred inflows of resources

Accrued interest receivable will be collected this year, but is not available soon
cnough to pay for the current period's expenditures and, therefore, was not recorded as
a receivable in the finds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds pavable, lease obligations, net pension liability,
compensated absences and other post-employment benefits: are not due and payable in
the current period and, therefore, are not reported as liabilities in the funds. Long-term
Liabilities at year-end consist of:

Bonds payable, net of related discounts and preminms

Deferred amount on refunding of debt

Accrued interest pavable

Authority lease obligations

Other lease purchase obligations

Net pension liability

OPEB liabilities

Accumulated compensated absences

Total net position - governmental activities

See Notes to Financial Statements.

5 62884119
76,561,103
507.698
15,436,075
1,494,000y
707,188
(1,218.493)
71
(29,368,805)
335832
(160,356)
(2.963.771)
(267.016)
(96.574,000)
(13.356,551)
(1.421.921) (143,776.588)
5 9607813



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - GOYERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2019
Major Funds
Totals
General Capital Permanent Debt Service  Governmental
Fund Projects Fund Fund Funds Funds
Fevenues
Local sources 49505861 5 41,522 & 1657008 % - 5 51,204,391
State sources 11,734,780 - - - 11,734,780
Federal sources 972,317 - - - 972317
Total revenues 62,112 958 41,522 1,657 008 - 63911488
Expenditures
[nstructional 34,837,321 - - - 34,837,321
Suppott services 20,248 628 1,261,126 - - 21,509,764
Operation of noninstructional services 1,676,975 - - - 1,676,975
Refund of prior years' receipts 68,953 - - - 68953
Delbt service 533,041 - - 4,627,501 5,180,542
Total expenditures 57,384 518 1,261,136 - 4,627 501 63,273 555
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 4,818,040 (1.219.614) 1,657,003 (4,627,501) 637933
Other Financing Sources {Uses)
Sale of capital assets AT.000 - - 37,000
Inrerfund transfers in 1.817.2584 1.850,000 - 4,627,501 5294785
Interfund transfers out (6,520,718) - (1,817,284) - (8,338,002)
Issuance of general obligation notes = 3,055,000 = = 3,055,000
[ssuance of refunding debt - 1,810,000 - - 1,810,000
Bond premiums - 149,955 - - 149955
Payments to refunded debt escrow agent - (1,895 000) - - {1,595,000)
Total other financing sources (uses) (4.666,434) 4,969,955 (1,817.284) 4,627,501 3,113,738
Net changes in fund balances 161,606 3,750,341 {160,276} - 3751671
Fund Balance - Tuly 1. 2018 2,442,920 6,797,176 43 892 352 - 30132448
Fund Balance - June 30, 2019 3 8,604,526 5 10,547,517 § 43,732,076 5 - 5 61,884,119

See Motes to Financial Statemenrs.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Net changes in fund balances - governmental fands

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expendinires. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives as depreciation expense. This iz the amount by which depreciation and dispositionz
excesd capital outlays in the cucrent period:

Capital cutlays

Less net book value of disposed assets.

Less depreciation expense

Some taxes will not be collected for several months after the District's fiscal year end, they
are not considered as "available” revenues in the govermmental funds. Deferred inflows of
recources increased by this amount during the vear,

Interest on long-term obligations in the Statement of Aetivities differs from the amount
reported in the governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the
funds when it iz due. and thms requires the use of cwrent financial resources. In the
Statement of Activities, interest expense is recognized as the iaterest acciuss, regardless of
when it is due. The change in interest accrued in the Smatement of Activities over the
amount due is shown here,

Some expenses reportad in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and. therefore, are not reported as expenditures 1o the govermmental
funds:

Change in net pension liability, net of deferred resources

Change in OPER liabilities, net of deferred rezources

Change in compensated absences

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to goverumental funds,
while the repavment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resowrces of governmental funds. Neither transaction. however, bas amy effect on net
position. Also, governmental funds report the effects of premiums, discounts and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amonnts are deferred and amortized in the
Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment
of long-term debt and related items.

Issuance of general obligation debt, including bond premium

Repayment of long-term debt

Amaortization of charges for band refunding

Amortization of bond premiums and discounts - net

Repayvment of extended term financing

1,419,414
(8,109}

(4.771.033)

(5.014,955)
5,922,739

(67.089)
219,133
267,017

$

3,751,671

13,359,728)

48,737

1.381

(2,004.563)
{678,517)
(9.166)

1,326,845

Change in net position of governmental activities

See Notes to Financial Statements.

E

(923.340)



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES -
EUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Variance With
Original Final Acmual Final Budget
Revenues
Loeal sources 3 48,604,982 § 48604982 § 403505861 % 00,879
State spurces 12,024,657 12,024,657 11,734,780 (289,877)
Federal sources 344,000 844,000 972,317 128,317
Total revenues 61.473.639 61,473,639 62212 958 739319
Expenditures
Instruction
Regular programs 26,074,839 26,062,359 25,044,654 1.017,705
Special programe 7,692,365 7,694,300 8,132,837 (438,537)
Vocational education programs 1,421,336 1,421,336 1,330,454 o4} 582
Other instructional programs 122,402 122,402 140,336 {17.934)
Comunnity/junior college education programs 223,857 37 189,040 33,817
Total instruction 35,533,799 35,523 254 34 837,321 685,933

support services

Pupil personnel 2,121,827 2,118,392 1,957,683 160,709
Tnstructional staft 2,307,087 312,437 2ATTG650 (165,213)
Administration 4,300,027 4308157 3.996,902 311,255
Pupil health 286,421 B86,421 1,006, 366 (119,945)
Buslness 06,294 906,294 212,254 94,040
Ciperation and mainfenance of planf services 5,583,169 5,583 169 5,683,034 {949,865)
Student (ransportation services 3,009,746 3,009,746 2,495,739 514,007
Ceniral 1,836,252 1,836,252 1,767,404 68, 545
Orher support services S1.512 51512 51,596 {84)
Total support services 21,002,335 21,012,380 20,248,628 763,752

Operation of noninstructional services

Student activities 1,556,746 1,557,246 1,668,020 (110,774)
Comnnity servicses 9.379 9,379 8,955 424
Total operation of noninstructional services 1.566,125 1,566,625 1,676,975 (110,350
Refund of prior years' recsipts - - 65,953 (68,953)
Dbt zervice 285750 285,750 553041 (267.291)
Total expenditures 58,388,009 58,388,009 57384918 1003 091
Excess of revenues over expenditures 3,085,630 3,085,030 4.828,040 1.742.410
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of or compensation for losz of fixed aszets - - 37,000 37,000
Interfund transfers in 1.817.286 1.817.286 1.817,284 (2
Interfund transfers our (5,648,223) (6,520,718) [572495)
Total other financing sources (uscs) (3.830,937) (3,830,937) {4.666,434) (835.497)
MNet change in fund balance 3 [745.307) % {745307) S 161,606 % G06,913

See Notes 10 Financial Sutements.
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DERRY TOWNSHIF SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2019

Food Service Granada
Fund Project Fund Totals
Assels
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents s 3177 § 504628 S 507,805
Due from other funds 29,097 145.490 174.587
Due from other governments 1958 - T.958
Other receivables 23,709 116,633 140,342
Prepaid expenses - 1,562 1,562
Inventories 75,298 - 75,298
Total current assets 139,239 768,313 907,552
Noncurrent Assets
Food service equipment 2,201,063 - 2,201.063
Lease buyout - 1,629,000 1,629,000
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,834.315) {1,629.000) (3,463.315)
Total noncurrent assets 366,748 - 166,748
Total assets § 505,987 $ 768,313 § 1,274,300
Deferved Outflows of Resources
Deferred amounts on pension liability § 347232 % - $ 347,232
Deferred amounts on OPEB liabilities 16,008 - 16,008
Total deferred ontflows of resources S 3308 - 3 363,240

See Notes to Financial Starements.




Food Service Granada

Fund Project Fund Totals
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable b 15483 % 167978 § 183.461
Accrued salaries and benefits 7441 - 7441
TUnearned revennes 32,018 45,062 77.080
Tatal current liabilities 34,942 213,040 267,982
Noncurrent Liabilities
Net pension lability 2,172,000 - 2,172,000
Accrued compensated absences 55,272 - 55,272
OPEB liabilities 309,676 - 209,676
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,536,948 - 2,536,948
Total liabilities § 2,501,890 S 213040 § 2.804.930
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred amounts on pension liability ] 34000 S - $ 34,000
Deferred amounts on OPEB liabilities 28,942 - 28,942
Total deferred inflows of resonrces 3 62,942 § - $ 62,942
Nel Position
Net investment in capital assets $ 366748 S - § 366,748
Unrestricted (2,152,353) 555,273 (1,597,080)
Taotal net position $ (1, 785.605) § 555273 $ (1,230,332)




DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION -

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Food Service Granada
Fund Project Fund Total
Operating Revenues
Food service revenue § 1.135.766 - § 1.135.766
Rental income - 279,149 279,149
CAM income - 480,199 480,199
Administrative fees - 35,570 35.570
Total operating revenues 1,135,766 794918 1.930.684
Operating Expenses
Salaries 634,102 - 654,102
Emplovee benefits 561.546 - 561,546
Food and supplies consumed 746,450 - 746.450
Other expenses 49,516 - 49,516
CAM expenses - 482,457 482,457
Depreciation and amortization 70,888 - 70,888
Total operating expenses 2,082,502 482,457 2,564,959
Operating income (loss) {946,736) 312461 (634.275)
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
State subsidies for food service 22,191 - 22,191
State subsidy for social security payments 24815 - 24 815
State subsidy for retirement payments 107.981 - 107981
Federal subsidies 278,437 - 278,437
Value of U.S.D.A. commaodities 101.819 - 101,819
Investment earnings - 2,447 2,447
Refund of prior years' expenditures 25429 - 25.429
Total nonoperating revenues 560.672 2447 563,119
Income (loss) before transfers (386,064) 314,908 (71,156)
Interfund Transfer In 43217 43,217
Changes in met position (342,847) 314,908 (27,939)
Net Position - July 1, 2018 (1.442,758) 240,365 (1.202,393)
Net Position - Jupe 30, 2019 3 (1.785.605) 335273 §(1.230.332)

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Food Service Granada
Fund Project Fund Total
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cach received from nsers £ 1091962 % 678,285 £ 1,770,247
Cash payments to emplovees for services (1,008,408) - (1,008,408}
Cash payments for goods and services (539.532) (176,104) (715,636)
Net cash provided by {used in) operating activitics (455.6878) S02,181 46,203
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Stare subsidies 154,889 - 154,889
Federal subsidies 277104 - 277,004
Transfers 43,217 - 43,217
Refund of prior year expenditures 25429 - 25429
Net cash provided by nonecapital financing activities 500,639 - 500,639
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Purchase of capital assets (43.217) - (43.217)
MNet cash used in capital and related financing aetivities (43.217) - (43217}
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investment earnings - 2,447 2,447
Net cash provided by investing activities = 2,447 2,447
Net inerease in cash and cash equivalents 1444 204,628 506,072
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
July 1, 2018 1,733 = 1,733
June 30, 2019 3 EN i 504,628  § 507,805
Reconciliation of Operating Income {Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Qperating (loss) income £ (946,735) % 312,461 % (634.275)
Adjustments to recancile operating income (loss) to nat
cash provided by (used in) operating activitles:
Depreciation 70,885 - TOLEES
Value of donated commodities 101,819 - 101,819
(Increase ) decrease in:
Other accounts receivable {4,072) (116.633) {120,705)
Inventories {L.B81) m {1.6EL)
Prepaid expenses 4 (1.562) {1,562)
Defemred outflows of resources 24,515 - 24,515
(Decrease] increase in:
Infernal balances 151,750 257,585 409,335
Accounts payable 4,546 50,330 54,876
Accrued salaries and benefits 1,666 - 1,666
Uncamed revenes (39,732) C (39.732)
Accrued compencated absences 1,099 - 1,900
MNet pension liability 148,378 - 148,378
OPEB liabilities (L0.938) = (10.936)
Deferred inflows of resources 41,618 = 41,618
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 5 (455978) % 502,181 § 46,203

See Notes to Financial Statements.




DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

June 30, 2019
Private-Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Furd Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents % 479431 § 319071 8 708,502
Investments 1,064,833 - 1,064,833
Total assets b 1,544,264 3 229,071 5 1,773,335
Liabilities
Due to other funds % 62,384 8§ - 5 62,384
Due to student groups - 214,351 214,351
Accounts payable - 14,720 14,720
Total liabilities b 62,384 8§ 229071 § 291,455
Net Position
Restricted $ 1481880 § - § 1,481,880
Total net position $ 1481880 % - § 1,481,880

See Notes to Financial Statements,
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
Year Ended June 30, 2019
Private-Purpose
Trust Fund

Additions
Interest earned 5 3,132
Unrealized gain on investments 1,138
Contributions 11,950
Total additions 16,220
Deductions
Scholarships awarded 22,800
Total deductions 22,800
Change in net position (6,580}

Net Position:
July 1, 2018 1,488 460
June 30, 2019 5 1481880

See Notes to Financial Statements.

26



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Derry Township School District (the District) operates a public school system that encompasses one
municipality in Dauphin County. The District operates one elementary school, one middle school and
one high school. The District operates under current standards prescribed by the Pennsylvania
Department of Education in accordance with the provisions of the School Laws of Pennsylvania. The
governing body of the District is comprised of a board of nine school directors who are each elected for a
four-year term. The daily operation and management of the District i1s carried out by the administrative
staff of the District, headed by the Superintendent of Schools who is appointed by the Board of School
Directors. Funding for the District is received from local, Commonwealth and Federal sources and must
comply with the requirements of the various funding source agencies.

The District assesses the taxpayers of these municipalities based upon taxing powers at its disposal. The
ability of the District’s taxpayers to pay their assessments is dependent upon economic and other factors
affecting the taxpavers.

The financial statements of the District have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the authoritative, standard setting body for the
establishment of governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of
these accounting policies are as follows:

A. Reporting Entity

In evaluating the District as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component units
which may or may not fall within the District’s financial accountability. The criteria used by the District
1o evaluate the possible inclusion of related entities within its reporting entity are financial accountability
and the nature and significance of the relationship. In determining financial accountability in a given
case, the District reviews the applicability of the following criteria:

The District is financially accountable for:

Organizations that make up the legal Distict entity.

Legally separate organizations if District officials appoint a voring majority of the organizations'
governing body and the District is able to impose its will on the organization or if there is a potential
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on,
the primary govermmnent.

Impose its will: If the District can significantly influence the programs, projects, or activities of, or
the level of services performed or provided by, the organization.

Financial benefit or burden; Exists if the District (1) is entitled to the organization's resources or (2) is
legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to finance the deficits of, or provide support
to, the organization or (3) is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization.

Organizations that are fiscally dependent on the District.

Fiscal dependency is eatablished if the organization is unable to adopt its budget, levy taxes or set
rates or charges, or issue bonded debt without approval by the District.

Based on the foregoing criteria. the District has no component entities that need to be included in the
District's financial statements.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

A, Reporting Entity (Continved)

Joint Venmures: The District is a participant in several joint ventures, each of which is a separate legal entity
that offers services to the District and its residents, These enfities serve multiple school districts and
municipalities and, therefore, are not included in this reporting entity as a component unit. These entities do
not have taxing authority, but are required to adopt an annual budget, which is funded primarily by its
members and others that use its services.

auphin County Area Vocational Technical School: The District is one of seven member school districts of
the Dauphin County Technical School (DCTS). The Vo-Tech School provides vocational-technieal
education to the constituents of all participating school districts. Member school districts are responsible for
funding the major portion of the Vo-Tech School's operating budget. For the year-ended June 30, 2019,
Derry Township School District paid $451,693 for its estimated share of the operating budget. As of June
30, 2019, the Vo-Tech School's General Fund had total assets of $3,554,760 and total liabilities of
$2,390.823. As of June 30, 2019, the Vo-Tech School had property and equipment net of accumulated
depreciation of $23,467,923, and governmental long-term liabilities of $51,146,316. During the year-ended
June 30, 2015, the Vo-Tech School refinanced its Series of 2007 bond with the issuance of Series of 2015
bond, see Note 9. The Vo- Tech School’s outstanding balance on their Series of 2015 bond as of June 30,
2019, is §17,050,000.

Derry Township Tax Collection Association: This Tax Association is a non-profit corporation created by
both Derry Township School District and Derry Township to collect occupation privilege taxes and
amusement taxes and to assist the elected tax collector in the collection of all real estate and occupation taxes
and municipal street light assessments. The Association’s expenses are shared equally by both the District
and Township, with a contribution from the elected tax collector. During the year-ending June 30. 2019, the
District paid $72,492 for its estimated share of the operating expenses. As of December 31, 2018, the Tax
Association’s General Fund had total assets of $168,23% and total liabilities of $14,863, resulting in a total
fund balance of $153,376. As of December 31, 2018, the Tax Association had general fund fixed assets net
of accumulared depreciation of $§59,834.

Capital Area Intermediate Unit: This Intermediate Unit provides support and services to students with special
needs that cannot be provided by district staft.

Harrisburg Area Community College:  Provides higher education services. All Dauphin County Schools
provide support to reduce tuition for district residents who attend full time.

The most recent audited financial statements of these joint ventures are available for inspection at the
District's business office.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continned)

B. Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of government-wide statements, including a statement of
net position and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements, which provide a more detailed
level of financial information.

Government-wide Financial Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of activities
display information about the District as a whole. These statements include the financial activities of the
primary government, except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between those activities of
the Distriet that are governmental and those that are considered business-type activities.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type
activities of the District at vear-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct
expenses and program revenues for each program or function of the Disirict's governmental activities, and
for the business-type activities of the District. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated
with a service, program or department and, therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program,
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular program and mterest earned on grants that 1s required to be used to support a particular
program. Revenues which are not classified as program revenues are presented as general revenues of the
District, with certain limited exceptions, The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues
identifies the extent to which each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws
from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements: During the year. the District segregates transactions related to certain District
functions or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal
compliance. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial information of the District at this
more detailed level, The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial statements is on major
funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and
presented in a single column, Fiduciary funds are reported by type,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

C. Fund Accounting

The District uses funds to maintain its financial records during the vear. A fund is defined as a fiscal and
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. There are three categories of funds:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the District are financed.
Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources.
Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which
they may or nmst be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The
difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following
are the District's major governmental funds for the year-ended June 30, 2019:

The General Fund is the operating fund of the District and is vsed to account for all financial
resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Capital Projects Funds are made up of the Capital Reserve Fund as well as the Capital
Projects Fund. The Capital Reserve Fund was established by the Board in April 2008 to fund
various future school projects. The annual funding level shall be adjusted based on a board
approved *“capital maintenance/growth plan™ and shall not exceed three years of projected
expenditures. Expenditures are limited to: capital improvements, replacement of and additions to
public works and improvements, for deferred maintenance thereof, and for the purchase or the
replacement of school buses. and for no other purpose. The Capital Projects Fund was established
by the Board in 2019 and is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted to
expendimres for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of major capital facilities,

The Permanent Fund is a beneficial interest in a perpetual trust, The fund is legally resiricted to
the extent that only earnings, and not principal, are used for purposes that support the District’s

programs.
The Debt Service fund accounts for accumulation of resources for, and the payment of long-term
debt principal, interest and related costs.

Proprietary Funds focus on the determination of the changes in net position, financial position and cash
flows, Proprietary funds are classified as enterprise or internal service; the District has no internal service
funds.

Enterprise Funds are used to account for any activity for which a fee is charged to exiernal users for
goods or services. The District reports the following enterprise funds:
The Food Service Fund accounts for the financial transactions related to food service operations,

The Granada Project Fund accounts for financial transactions related to facility rental operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continned)

C. Fund Accounting {Continued)

Fiduciary Fund reporting focuses on net position and changes in net position. The fiduciary fund
category is split into four classifications: pension trust funds, Investment trust funds, private purpose trust
funds and agency funds. Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the District under a trust
agreement for individuals, private arganizations, or other governments and are, therefore, not available to
support the District's own programs. The District's only trust funds are private purpose trust funds which
account for scholarship programs for students. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal
liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. The District's agency fund accounts
for assets held as an agent for various student activities.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardiess of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met. Net position (total assets, plus deferred outflows of resources, less total liabilities, less
deferred inflows of resources) is used as a practical measure of economic resources and the operating
statement includes all transactions and events that increased or decreased net position, Depreciation is
charged as expense against current operations and accumulated depreciation is reported on the statement
of net position.

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the curent financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For
this purpose, the District considers tax revenue 1o be available if colleeted within 60 days of the end of the
fiscal period, Revenue from Federal. State and other grants designated for payment of specific School
District expenditures are recognized when the related expenditures are incurred; accordingly, when such
funds are received, they are recorded as deferred revenues until earned. Expenditures generally are
recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures, as
well a8 expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

E. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

An operating budget is adopted prior to the beginning of each vear for the General Fund on a modified
accrual basis of accounting. The General Fund is the only fund for which a budget is legally required.

The Pennsylvania School Code dictates specific procedures relative to adoption of the District's budget
and reporting of its financial statements, specifically:

The District, before levying annual school faxes, is required to prepare an operating budget for
the succeeding fiscal year.

The District is required to publish notice by advertisement, at least once in two newspapers of
general circulation in the municipality in which it is located, and within 15 days of final action,
that the proposed budget has been prepared and is available for public inspection at the
administrative office of the District.

Notice that public hearings will be held on the proposed operating budget must be included in the
advertisement; such hearings are required to be scheduled at least 10 days prior to when final
action on adeption is taken by the Board.

Legal budgetary control is maintained at the sub-function/major object level. The Board of
School Directors may make transfers of funds appropriated to any particular item of expenditure
by legislative action in accordance with the Pennsylvania School Code. Management may amend
the budget at the sub-function/sub-object level without Board approval. Appropriations lapse at
the end of the fiscal period. Budgetary information reflected in the financial statements is
presented at or below the level of budgetary control and includes the effect of approved budget
amendments. The Board of School Directors made no supplemental budgetary appropriations
throughout the year.

In order to preserve a portion of an appropriation for which an expenditure has been committed
by a purchase order, contract or other form of commitment, an encumbrance is recorded.
Encumbrances outstanding at vear-end are reported in the fund financial statements as a
committed fund balance.

Included in the General Fund budget are program budgets as prescribed by the federal and state
agencies funding the program. These budgets are approved on a program by program basis by
the federal and state funding agencies.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continned)

F.  Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net
Position or Fund Balance

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments: Cash includes all demand deposits, petty cash, savings,
maoney market accounts and Certificates of Deposit owned by the District. Investments include
repurchase agreements, investment trusts which mature at a future date, mutual funds and United States
Treasury Notes, Investments are stated at fair value. Accrued interest is reflected as “other receivables™
on the balance sheet.

The District i3 authorized by Sec. 440.1 of the Public School Code of 1949, as amended, to invest in
United States Treasury Bills, short-term obligations of the United States Government or its agencies and
instrumentalities, or in deposits, in savings accounts or time deposits or share accounts of instinitions
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance
Corporation (FSLIC) or the National Credit Union Share Tnsurance Fund (NCUSIF), to the extent that
such accounts are so insured, and for any amounts above the insured maximums, provided that approved
collateral as required by provisions of Act No. 72 of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania are pledged by
the depository.

For purposes of these financial statements, the District considers all highly hquid investments with a
maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Interfund Balances: On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term
interfund loans are classified as “interfund receivables/payable” These amounts are eliminated in the
governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement of net position, except for the net
residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented as internal
balances.

Inventory: On the government-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at the lower of cost or
market on a first-in. first-out basis and are expensed when used.

On fund financial statements, inventories of governmental funds are based upon the latest invoice price,
which approximates cost while inventories of proprietary funds are stated at the lower of cost or market.
For all funds, cost is determined on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory in governmental funds consists of
expendable supplies held for consumption. Inventories of the govermmental funds and enterprise fund are
expensed when used.

Prepaid Expenses: Certain paviments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and

are recorded as prepaid items (consumption method) in both the government-wide and fund financial
statements,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continned)

F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
or Fund Balance (Continued)

Capital Assets: General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the
proprietary funds. These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These
assets are reported in the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net
position but are not reported in the fund financial statements, Capital assets utilized by the proprietary
funds are reported both in the business-type activities column of the government-wide statement of net
position and in the respective funds,

All capital assets are capitalized at cost (or estimated historical cost) and updated for additions and
retirements during the year. Donated fixed assets are recorded at their fair market values as of the date
received. The District maintains a capitalization threshold of $500. The District does not possess any
infrastructure. Tmprovements are capitalized; the costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add
to the value of the asset or materially extend an asset's life are not.

All reported capital assets except land, land improvements and construction-in-progress are depreciated.
Improvements are depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation
15 computed using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Buildings and improvements 20-50 years N/A
Furniture and equipment 5-15 years 5-12 years
Vehicles 8-10 years N/A

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pensions: The District recognizes the difference between expected and
acmal experience, changes in assumptions, net difference between projected and actval investment
earnings, changes in proportion, the difference between employer contributions and proportionate share of
total contributions and the contributions subsequent to the measurement date as deferred outflows of
resources. These amounts are amortized over the average remnining service lives of active and inactive
members,

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Other Post-Emplovment Benefits: The District recognizes the
difference between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions. net difference between
projected and actual investment eamings, changes in proportion, benefit payments subsequent to the
measurement date and conwibutions subsequent to the measurement date as deferred outflows of
resources. These amounts are amortized over the average remaining service lives of active and inactive
members.

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Deferred Amounts on Refunding Debt: The District recognizes the
difference between the re-acquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt as a deferred

outflow which is a component of interest expense over the remaining life of the old or new debt,
whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continned)

F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
or Fund Balance (Continued)

Long-Term Obligations: In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the
fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental or business-type activity columns in the statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premivm or discount. Bond issvance
costs are recognized as an expense in the period incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Compensated Absences: Sick leave benefits are accrued as a liability using the termination method. An
accrual for earned sick leave is made to the extent that it is probable that benefits will result in termination
payments. The liability is an estimate based on the District’s past experience of making termination
payments. The compensated absence liabiliry is reported on the government-wide financial statements.

Pensions: Substantially all full-time and qualifying part-time employees of the District participate in a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. For purposes of measuring the net pension
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public School Employees’ Retirement System
(PSERS) and additions to/deductions from PSERS’s fiduciary met position have been determined on the
same basis as they are reported by PSERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are veported at fair value.

Other Post-Employment Benefits: In the governmeni-wide financial statements. the District recognizes
the costs and lhabilities associated with post-employment benefits other than pension compensation. The
District participates in two plans, the first is a single employer plan administered by the District, The plan
provides retiree health, vision, dental care and prescription drug benefits for eligible, retired employees
and their qualified spouses/beneficiaries. The District estimates the cost of providing these benefits
through an actuarial valuation,

The District also participates in a governmental cost sharing, multiple-employer other post-employment
benefit plan (OPEB} with PSERS for all eligible retirees who qualify and elect to participate. For
purposes of measuring the net OFEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public
School Employees® Retirement System (PSERS) and additions to/deductions from PSERS's fiduciary net
position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PSERS, For this purpose, benefit
payments are recognized when due and payable m accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are
reported at fair value.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
or Fund Balance (Continued)

Other Post-Emplovment Benefits (Continued): The balance of the District’s OPEB liabilities and related
deferred outflows/inflows of resources at June 30, 2019, are as follows:

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
OPEB Liabilities
District's Single Employer Plan £ 9161551 & 215676 § 9377227
PSERS Cost Sharing Plan 4,195,000 94,000 4,289,000
Total 5 13,356,551 § 309676 3 13,666227
Deferred Outflows of Resources
District's Single Employer Plan 5 255,188 8§ 6008 % 261,196
PSERS Cost Sharing Plan 452,000 10,000 462,000
Tatal 5 707,188 § 16,008 & 723,196
Deferred Inflows of Resources
District's Single Employer Plan § 1.050403 § 24942 § 1084435
PSERS Costs Sharing Plan 159,000 4,000 163,000
Total 5 1218493 § 18042 5 1,247 435

Additional disclosures related to other post-employment benefits of the District’s Single Employer Plan
and PSERS Cost Sharing Plan are in Notes 13 and 14, respectively.

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Unearned Revenues: The District recognizes properly 1ax revenues when
they become available, Available includes those property taxes expected to be collected within 60 days
after year-end. Those property taxes expected to be collected beyond 60 days after year-end are shown as
deferred revenue in the fund financial statements. Governmental funds also defer revenues in connection
with resources that have been received, but not yet earned,

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pensions: The District recognizes the difference between expected and
actual experience as deferred inflows of resources. These amounts are amortized over the average
remaining service lives of active and inactive members.

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Other Post-Employment Benefits: The District recognizes the difference
between expected and actual experience and changes in assumptions as deferred inflows of resources.
These amounts are amortized over the average remaining service lives of active and inactive members,
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continned)

F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and MNet Position
or Fund Balance (Continued)

Government-wide Net Position: Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows
of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. The District’s net position is composed of the
following;

Net Investment in Capital Assets: Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balances of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of these
agsets.

Restricted: Represents amounts with external constraints placed on the use of these resources or imposed
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted net position for the governmental
activities is composed of the following:

Amount
Capital improvements 3 T7.438.844
Beneficial mterest in perpetual trust (nonexpendable) 43,732,076
Total restricted net position 3 51,170,920

There wers no restrictions placed on net position for the business-type activities.

Unrestricted: The difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources that are not reported in net investment in capital assets or as restricted net position.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies (Continned)

F. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position
or Fund Balance (Continued)

Fund Balances: In the governmental fund financial statements. fund balances are classified as follows:

Nonspendable: Represents amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable
form (such as inventory or prepaids) or because they are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact (such as notes receivable or principal of a permanent fund).

Restricted: Represents amounts with external constrainis placed on the use of these resources
(such as grantors, bondholders and higher level of government) or imposed through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed: Represents amounts that can only be used for specific purposes imposed by a formal
action of the District’s highest level of decision making authority, the Board, Committed
resources cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Board removes or changes the specific
use by taking the same formal action that imposed the constramt originally.

Assigned: Represents amounts the District intends to use for specific purposes as expressed by
the Board or an official delegated the authority. The Board has delegated the authority to assign
fund balances to the Business Manager. The District does not have any amounts that are
assigned.

Unassigned: Represents amounts that are available for any purpose, reported only in the General
Fund.

In circumstances where an expendimre is to be made for a purpose for which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance classifications, the order in which resources will be expensed is as follows:
restricted fund balance, followed by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and unassigned fund
balance.

The District’s policy is to maintain eight percent (8%) of annual budgeted operating expenditures for the
next fiscal year as its maximum general fund unassigned fund balance,

The following schedule provides information about the specific fund balance classification by fund:

Capital Projects

General Fund Fund FPermanent Fund Total

Monzpendable

Inventory 5 145,971 5 - L3 - 5 146.971

Prepaid expenses 12,187 2 = 12,187

MNote receivable 266,596 = = 266,596

Beneficial interest in

perperal ozt - - 43.732.076 43.732.07T6

Rectrictad

Capital lmprovemsants - 10.547.517 - 10,547,517
Committed

Health benefins 500,000 - - S00.000

Retirement stabilization 2.384.692 - - 2.384.602
Unascigned 5.203.780 - - 5.293.780

Total E3 B.604,526 5 10,547,517 £ 43,732,076 5 52,884,119
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continned)

G. Other

Encumbrances: Encumbrances at vear-end are reported in the fund financial statements as vestricted or
committed fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but serve as authorization
for expenditures in the subsequent year.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management t0 male estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Ewvents: In preparing these financial statements, the District has evaluated events and

transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through December 24, 2019, the date that the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Note 2. Depaosits and Investments

Under Section 440.1 of the Public School Code of 1949, as amended, the District is permitted to invest
funds consistent with sound business practices in the following types of investments:

e U.S, Treasury Bills
* Short-term obligations of the U.S. Government or its agencies or its instrumentalities
® Deposits in savings accounts or time deposits or share accounts of institutions insured by:
1. The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), or
2. The Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation (FSLIC), or
3. The National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF) to the extent that such
accounts are so insured, and for any amounts above maximum insurable limits, provided
that approved collateral as provided by law shall be pledged by the depository
s  Obligations of (a) the United States of America or its agencies or instrumentalities backed by
the full-faith and credit of the United States of America, and (b) the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania or instrumentalities thereof backed by the full-faith and credit of these political
subdivisions
e  Shares of investment companies whose investments are restricted to the above categories

The deposit and investment policy of the Distriet adheres to stare stamtes and prudent business practices.

There were no deposit or investment transactions during the year that were in violation of either state
statutes or the policy of the District.

Deposits: Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credir risk is the risk that in the event of a bank default, the District’s investments may not be
returned to it. A summary of the District®s deposits at June 30, 2019, are shown below:

Carrying Bank Financial
Amount Balance Institution
Insured (FDIC) 5 250,000 5 250,000 First National Bank
Insured (FDIC) 4,025,547 4,025,547 Bryn Mawr Trust
Uninsured, collateralized in accordance
with Act 72 18,244,212 18,669,828 First National Bank

§ 22,519,759 B 22,945,375

Act 72 of 1971, as amended, is an act standardizing the procedures for pledges of assets to secure deposits
of public funds with banking institutions pursuant to other laws; establishing a standard rule for the types,
amounts and valuations of assets eligible to be used as collateral for deposits of public funds; permitting
assets to be pledged against deposits on a pooled basis and authorizing the appointment of custodians to
act as the pledgers of the assets.
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Note 2. Depasits and Investments (Continned)

Investments

It is the District’s investment policy to optimize its remurn through investment of cash balances in such a
way as to minimize non-invested balances and to maximize return on investments. The primary
objectives of investment activities, in priority order, shall be:

1. Legality - All investments shall be made in accordance with applicable laws of Pennsylvania.

2. Safety - Safety of principal shall be of highest priority. Preservation of capital in the portfolio of
investments shall be ensured through the mitigation of credit risk and interest rate risk.

3. Liquidity - Investments shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating requitements that are
reasonably anficipated, A fiscal year operations anticipated cash flow shall be developed so that
investments can be made as early as possible, with maturities concurrent with anticipated cash
demands.

4. Yield - Tnvestments shall be made with the objective of attaining a market-average rate of return
throughout the budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk
constraints and liquidity needs.

At June 30, 2019, the District had no investments with maturities greater than 12 months within the
governmental funds.

As of June 30, 2019, the James L, Fillmore Scholarship Trust Fund {contained within the fiduciary fund -
private purpose trust fund), to be used to provide scholarships for students to attend the University of
Cincinnati, had the following investments:

Investments Fair Value
Money Market Fund 5 21,567
Mutual Funds T60,120
Commeoen Stock 224,459
Exchange Traded Funds 80,254
Total investiments % 1,086,400

The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used 1o measure
the fair value of the asser. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2
inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

Commeon Stocks. Mutual Funds and Exchange Traded Funds: The fair value of common stocks and
mutual funds are based on closing market prices for the identical security as reported in active markets.
These investments are reported at fair value as Level | investments under GASB Statement No. 72.

Money Market Funds: Fixed income securities do not always trade on a daily basis so the fair values of
each security are dependent upon various pricing models that incorporate benchmark yields, interest rates,
credit risk, broker-dealer quotes and other valuation processes. These investments are reported at fair
value as a Level 2 investment under GASB Statement No. 72,
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Note 3. Beneficial Interest in a Perpetual Trust

The District is named the beneficiary in a perpetval trust, which originated from a bequest by Milton S.
Hershey in 1946 and is administered by Fulton Bank, NA. The perpetual trust is to pay income to the
District quarterly, and the District is to nse the funds for such purpose as determined by the District
Board. The funds in the trust are restricted and are not available to the District, except for distributions
made from the trust to the District per the trust agreement and state law governing perpetual trosts. Assets
of the perpefual trust are restricted in the statement of net position and designated as nonspendable in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The assets are recorded at fair value. Income less trustee fees and
changes in fair value of the perpetuval trust are recorded as investment carnings. The following is a
summary of the transactions for the year-ended Tune 30, 2019:

Amount
Balance at Tuly 1, 2018 § 43892352
Net investment income 1,823,021
Trustee fees (166.013)
Transfers to general fund (1,817,284)
Balance at June 30, 2019 $ 43,732,076

The assets of the perpetual trust are categorized as Level 3. Financial assets valued vsing level 3 inputs
are based on significant nnobservable inputs and have the lowest prierity. According to FASB ASC 820-
10-35-58, if an organization will never be able to redeem its investment at the net asset value per share {as
in a perpetual trust), the measurement should be categorized as a Level 3 fair value measurement.

Note 4. Property Taxes

Based upon assessed valuations provided by the County, the District bills and collects its own property
taxes, The schedule for property taxes levied for 2018-2019 is as follows:

July 1, 2018 Tax levy date
Through August 31, 2018 2% discount
September 1 - October 31, 2018 Face payment period
November 1 - December 31, 2018 10%% penalty period
January 1, 2019 Lien filing date

The District’s tax rate for all purposes in 2018-2019 was 18,5363 mills ($18.5363 per 51,000 assessed
valuation). Refunds on payvments of prior vear taxes are classified as Other Debt Service items under the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s accounting system. Current tax collections for the district were
approximately 98% of the total tax levy.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5. Taxes Receivable, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Estimated Uncollectible Taxes

A summary of the taxes receivable and related accounts at June 30, 2019, are as follows:

Aqnonnt
Uncollected Taxes § 2,839,220
Estimated uncollectible raxes (2,237,107)
Taxes Receivable - Net 8 602,113
Taxes to be collected within 60 days 5 94,415
Deferred inflows of resources - delinquent property taxes 507,698
Taxes Receivable - Net 5 602,113

Note 6. Note Receivable - Township of Derry

In March 2002, the District entered into the Gymnasium Facility Joint Management and Use Agreement
with the Township of Derry. This agreement requires that the Township of Derry pay an annual user fee
to the District in an amount equal to the proportionate share of the costs in renovating the Granada
Gymnasium, together with an interest component equal to the District’s cost of funds to finance the
construction and financing of the renovations and an annual administrating fee. The Township of Derry’s
proportionate share of cost for the renovation amounnted to $904,440. Interest will be paid on this amount
based on the same interest rate the District incurred on the debt (series of 2012) directly related to this
renovation, which ranges from 1.45% to 3.00%.

The amortization schedule of this receivable is as follows:

Principal
Year Ending June 30: Maturities Interest Total
2020 S 84015 § 5685 S 69,700
2021 65,844 4,404 70,248
2022 67,673 3.087 70,760
2023 69 364 1,666 71,030
Totals 5 266896 § 14,842 £ 281,738
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Note 7. Interfund Receivables and Payables and Transfers

Interfund balances and transfers at June 30, 2019, are as follows:

Interfund Interfund

Fund Receivables Payables
Governmental Funds

General 5 62,384 5 1,033,038

Capital Projects B38.451 -
Proprietary Funds

Food Service 29,097 -

Granada Project 145.490 -
Fiduciary Fund

Private Purpose Trust

= 62,384

8§ 1095422 5 1,095422

In order to take advantage of higher interest rates, the District holds all of the cash for each fund in one
account. They make monthly transfers to cover the expenses of each fund, The balances in the interfind
receivables are the amount of cash belonging to that fund in the general fund account.

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out
Governmental Funds
General $ 1817284 § 6,520,718
Capital Projects 1,850,000 -
Permanent - 1,817.284
Debt Service 4,627.501 -
Proprietary Fund
Food Service 43,217

§ B338,002 5 8338,002
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Note 8. Capital Assefs

Capital asset activity for the vear ended June 30, 2019, was as follows:

Julv 1, June 30,
208 Increases Decreases 2019
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land 51,047,274 5 - % - 5 1047274
Construction-in-progress 121,452 421,103 181,000 361,555
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,168,726 421.103 181,000 1,408,829
Capital assets being depreciated
Site improvements 10,730,724 - - 10,730,724
Buildings and building improvements 115,381,206 261,815 - 115,543,021
Furniture and equipment 28,458,005 917,496 333,307 20,043,184
Total capital assets being depreciated 154,570,025 1179311 333,307 155,416,920
Less accumulated depreciation
Site improvements 5,663,955 519,421 - 6,183,376
Buildings and building improvements 46,057,789 2,895,787 - 48,953,576
Furnimre and equipment 24,097,076 1,355,825 325,198 25,127,703
Taotal Accumulated Depreciation 75,818,820 4,771,033 325,198 #0,264,655
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 78,752,105 (3,591.722) 8,109 75,152,274

Total Governmental Activities,
Capital Assets - Net

]

79,020,831 $ (3.170619) § 189,100 % 76,561,103

Business-Type Activities
Capital assets being depreciated
Equipment 5 2157847 % 43,217 5 - $ 2,201,064

Less accumulated depreciation
Equipment 1,763 428 70,888 - 1834316

Business-Type Activities,
Capifal Assets = Net 5 304410 % (27.671) % - 3 366,748
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Note 8. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation on equipment was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Amounts

Governmental Activities:
Instruction 3 3231600
Instructional student support 456,395
Administrative and financial support services 479,928
Operation and maintenance of plant services 309,319
Pupil transportation 162,766
Student activities 130,112
Other community services 913
Total povernmental activities 4,771,033

Business-Type Activities
Food service 70,888

Tatal School District
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Note 9.

Long-Term Obligations

A summary of the reporting entity’s long-term obligations as of June 30, 2019, and transactions during the

year then ended follows:

Tuly 1, Tune 30 Due within
2018 Increases Decreases 2012 ONE YEar
Governmental activities:
Bonds and notes payvable
Series of 2012 § 1525000 8 - % 1525000 % - 3 -
Series A of 2012 2,770,000 - 575,000 2,155,000 340,000
Series of 2014 9,655,000 - 15,000 9,640,000 130,000
Series of 2015 5,510,000 - 1,755,000 3,755,000 1,820,000
Series A of 2015 5,945,000 - 170,000 5,775,000 170,000
Seties of 2016 4,530,000 - 1,443,000 3,085,000 1,260,000
Serics A of 2019 E 3.310.000 255000 3,055,000 45.000
Seties B of 2019 - L.555.000 - L.555,000 -
et premium {diseonnt) an bonds 377,083 149,955 219,133 108,805 -
Tatal bonds and notes payable 30,512,983 5,014,955 5,959,133 29,368,805 3,865,000
Dauphin County Techmeal School
lease obligation 3,146,510 - 182,739 2,963,771 171,762
Other lease obligations 534,083 z 267017 267.016 267016
Compensated absences 1,412,755 9.166 - 1421921 -
Total governmental activities
long-term obligations § 35406281 8 5024121 % 6408889 % 34021513 § 4309773
Business-type activities:
Compensated absences 5 §3273 % 1999 % - 3 55272 % -
Total business-type activities
long-term obligations § 53273 8 1999 § - 3 35272 § -

General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2012 - On March 15, 2012, the District authorized the issuance of
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012, in the aggregate principal amount of $3,110,000, The proceeds
of the bonds were used to provide funds to: (1) refund the outstanding Township of Derry Industrial and
Commercial Development Authority, Guaranteed School Revenue Bonds, series 2007, of the District: (2)
pay the coats of issuing the bonds. The Bonds bore interest rates that were not to exceed 2.00%; the initial
rate was 0.30%. On December 17, 2018, the District issued General Obligation Notes - Series A of 2019 to
refund this obligation.

General Obligation Bonds - Series A of 2012 - On December 19, 2012, the District authorized the issuance
of General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2012, in the aggregate principal amount of $3,240,000. The
proceeds of the bonds were used to provide fonds to: (1) fund alterations, additions and renovations to the
Hershey Middle School, including a new HVAC system for the middle school, and other various capital
improvement projects of the District; (2) pay the costs of issuing the bonds. The Bonds bear interest rates
that shall not exceed 2,00%; the initial rate is 0.30%. The bonds mature serially in amounts ranging from
$5,000 to $805,000 through 2025,
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Note 9. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2014 - On February 24, 2014, the District authorized the issuance of
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2014, in the aggregate principal amount of $9,820,000. The
proceeds of the bonds were unsed to provide funds to: (1) advance refund the outstanding General
Obligation Bonds, Series of 2010 of the District; and (2) pay the costs of issuing the bonds. The Bonds
bear interest rates that shall not exceed 3.00%; the initial rate is 0.15%. The bonds mature serially in
amounts ranging from $3,000 to $3,41 5,000 through 2025,

General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2015 - On February 19, 2015, the District authorized the issuance of
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2015, in the aggregate principal amount of $9,995,000, The
proceeds of the bonds were used to provide funds to: (1) the partial curvent refunding and redemption of
the general obligation bonds, series A of 2010 of the District; and (2) pay the costs of issuing the bonds.
The refunding reduced total debt service payments by $722.397 over the next & years. This results in an
economic gain (difference between present walue of the debt service payments on the old and new debt)
of 5686,114. The Bonds bear interest rates that shall not exceed 4.00%; the initial rate is 0.20%. The
bonds matre serially in amounts ranging from $105,000 to 1,820,000 through 2023,

General Obligation Bonds - Series A of 2015 - On November 23, 2015, the District authorized the
issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2015, in the aggregate principal amount of 56,120,000,
The proceeds of the bonds were used to provide funds to: (1) advance refund a portion of the outstanding
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2008 of the District; and (2) pay the costs of issuing the bonds. A
portion of the proceeds was imevocably deposited in an escrow fund maintained by Manufacturers and
Traders Trust Company. These proceeds were used to purchase certain United States Treasury Securities,
which will mature and eam interest to provide for all fiture debt service on the refunded portion of the
Series 2008 bonds. As a resull, a portion of the Series 2008 bonds are considered defeased and the
District has removed a portion of the liability from its accounts, The outstanding principal of the defeased
bonds was 35,875,000 at June 30, 2018, and this amount was paid in full during the year-ending June 30,
2019. The advanced refunding reduced total debt service payments by $712,639 over the next 9 years.
This results in an economic gain {difference between present value of the debt service payments on the
old and new debt) of $674,897. The Bonds bear interest rates that shall not exceed 4.00%: the inirial rate
15 1,00, The bonds mature serially in amounts ranging from $1 70,000 to $2,230,000 through 2024,

General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2016, in the aggregate principal amount of §7,200,000, The
proceeds of the bonds were used to provide funds for: (1) the current refunding of the general obligation
bonds, series of 2011 of the District; and (2) pay the costs of issuing the bonds. The refunding reduced
total debt service payments by $269.880 over the next % years. This results in an economic gamn
(difference between present value of the debt service payments on the old and new debt) of $267,605. The
Bonds bear interest rates that shall not exceed 4.00%; the initial rate is 0.37%. The bonds mature serially
in amounts ranging from $255,000 to $1,360,000 through 2023,
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Note 9. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

General Obligation Notes - Series A of 2019 - On December 17, 2018, the District authorized the
issuance of General Obligarion Notes, Series A of 2019, in the aggregate principal amount of $3,310,000.
The proceeds of the notes were used to provide funds to: (1) the current refunding of the outstanding
General Obligation Bonds, Series of 2012, of the District; (2) the current refunding of a portion of the
outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Series A of 2012, of the District, (3} various capital projects of the
District and {4) pay the costs of issuing the notes. The economic loss on the refunding of the 2012 and
2012A bonds was $165,934. The Notes bear interest rates that shall not exceed 4.00%,; the initial rate is
1.78%. The notes mature serially in amounts ranging from $10,000 to $1.685,000 through 2026,

General Obligation Notes - Series B of 2019 - On December 17, 2018, the Distriet authorized the issuance
of General Obligation Notes, Series B of 2019, in the aggregate principal amount of $1,555,000. The
proceeds of the notes were used to provide funds to: (1) various capital projects of the Disirict and (2) pay
the costs of issuing the notes. The Notes bear an interest rate of 3.3%. The notes are not subject to
redemption prior to maturity and are scheduled ro mature in May 2026,

The following is a schedule of principal and interest requirements to service the general long-term debt of
the District:

General Obligation Debt

Years Principal Interest Total

2019-2020 5 3.865,000 & 761548 3% 4,626,548
2020-2021 4,005,000 624,335 4,629,335
2021-2022 4,105,000 526,535 4,631,535
2022-2023 4,190,000 438,135 4,628,135
2023-2024 4,295,000 335,885 4,630,885
2024-2029 8,600,000 412.000 9,012,000

3 29.060,000 5 3098438 % 32,158,438
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Note 9. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Lease Obligations - Dauphin County Technical School Lease Obligation

The Board of Directors of the District authorized the incurring of lease rental debt in connection with the
Dauphin County Technical School, by entering into an agreement of lease and guaranty with Dauphin
County Technical School, dated March 15, 2007. The Technical School constructed improvements and
renovations and acquired equipment for the Technical School and has financed it by issuing $24,730.000
in School Lease Revenue Bonds, Series of 2007, dated March 15, 2007, These bonds were refinanced by
the issuance of Series of 2015, dated March 15, 2015, in the amount of $19,005,000. This debt is
supported by the full faith, credit and taxing power of the seven member school districts who participate
in the Technical School. Derry Township School District’s original share of this debr was $3,170,034,
which was based on the market valuation of all taxable real property in each school district,

The following is a schedule of principal and interest requirements to service the Lease Obligations -
Dauphin County Technical School Bond requirements of the District:

Vo-Tech Lease Obligation

Years Principal Interest Total
2019-2020 h 177,782 & 110,797 § 388,579
2020-2021 184,470 103,552 288,022
2021-2022 192,071 95,827 JR7,898
2022-2023 200,402 87,757 288,139
2023-2024 208,787 79.291 288,078
2024-2028 1.188.156 252,709 1,440,865
2028-2031 812,103 24,361 836,464
5 2963771 5 754294 5 3,718,065

Compensated Absences

Under the terms of the District’s employment policies, emplovees are reimbursed for accrued vacation
upon retirement or other termination of employment. The reimbursement rate is established by the
employment contract and varies by emplovee classification. In addition, employees are granted sick days
per school year, and any unused sick days are permitted to be carried over to future years. Upon
retirement from the District, employees are reimbursed for accumulated sick days equal to the number of
unused days nltiplied by an amount established by the employment contract. The employees are also
offered options regarding retirement payouts as prescribed in the contract if certain conditions are met.
The total Liability for accrued vacation, sick leave and retirement bonuses has been reflected in the
Statement of Net Position.
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Note 9. Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Other Lease Obligations

The District leases computers which are located thronghout the District. The related lease agreements
qualify as capital leases, and accordingly, these transachions are recorded at the present values of related
future, minimum lease payments as of the inception date. All lease-purchase obligations are funded by the
General Fund.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Amount
Assers:
Computers 5 BOL.030
Less accummlated depreciation (534,034)
Total computers - net book value s 267.016

The following is a schedule of the future, minimum lease payments due under the lease-purchase
obligations as of June 30, 2019:

Years Amount
2019-2020 3 267,016
Total present valve of mininum lease payiments g 267.016
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Note 10.  Operating Lease Commitments

On March 1, 2017, the District entered into a five-year lease agreement with Fraser Advanced
Information Systems for the lease of copier equipment. Tease rentals totaling $25.640 were paid during
the vear ended June 30, 2019 . The following is a schedule by years of future lease rentals under the lease
at June 30, 2019:

Minimum [eaze

Year Ending June 30: Obligation
2020 s 25,640
2021 25,640
2022 25,640
Total < 76,920

On September 1. 2014, the District entered into a five-year lease apreement with JGF Funding, LLC for
the leasing of copier equipment. Lease rentals totaling $69,726 were paid during the vear ended June 30,
2019. The following is a schedule by years of funure lease rentals under the lease at June 30, 2019:

Minimum Lease

Year Ending June 3(: Obligation

2020 $ 69,726

2021 31,979
Total & 101,705
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Note 11.  Defined-Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

PSERS is a governmental cost-sharing multiple-emplover defined benefit pension plan that provides
retirement henefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, The members
eligible to participate in the System include all full-time public school employees, part-time hourly public
school employees who render at least 500 hours of service in the school year and part-time per diem
public school employees who render at least 80 days of service in the school year in any of the reporting
entities in Pennsylvania. PSERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at

WWW,DSETS. pa. EOV,

Benefits Provided

PSERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits, Members are eligible for monthly retirement
benefits upon reaching (a) age 62 with at least | vear of credited service; (b) age 60 with 30 or more years
of credited service; or (c) 35 or more years of service regardless of age. Act 120 of 2010 (Act 120)
preserves the benefits of existing members and introduced benefit reductions for individuals who become
new members on or after July 1, 2011. Act 120 created two new membership classes: Membership Class
T-E (Class T-E) and Membership Class T-F (Class T-F). To qualify for normal retirement, Class T-E and
Class T-F members must work until age 65 with a minimum of 3 vears of service or attain a total
combination of age and service that is equal to or greater than 92 with a minimum of 35 years of service.
Benefits are generally equal to 2% or 2.5%, depending wpon membership class, of the member’s final
average salary (as defined in the Code) mmltiplied by the number of vears of credited service. For
members whose membership started prior to July 1, 2011, after completion of five years of service, a
member’s right to the defined benefits is vested and early retirement benefits may be elected. For Class T-
E and Class T-F members, the right to benefits is vested after 10 vears of service.

Participants are eligible for disability retirement benefits after completion of five years of credited
service. Such benefits are generally equal to 2% or 2.5%, depending upon membership class, of the
member’s final average salary (as defined in the Code) multiplied by the number of years of credited
service, but not less than one-third of such salary nor greater than the benefit the member would have had
at normal retirement age. Members over normal retirement age may apply for disability benefits,

Death benefits are payable upon the death of an active member who has reached age 62 with at least one
year of credited service (age 65 with at least three years of credited service for Class T-E and Class T-F
members) or who has at least five years of credited service (ten wears for Class T-E and Class T-F
members). Such benefits are actarially equivalent to the benefit that would have been effective if the
member had retired on the day before death.
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Note 11.  Defined-Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Contributions

Member Caontributions:

Active members who joined the System prior to July 22, 1983, contribute at 5.25% (Membership Class T-
C)or at 6.50% (Membership Class T-D) of the member’s qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the Systern on or after July 22, 1983, and who were active or inactive as of July 1,
2001, contribute at 6.25% (Membership Class T-C) or at 7.50% (Membership Class T-D) of the
member’s qualifying compensation.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2001 and before July 1, 2011, contribute at 7.50%
(automatic Membership Class T-D). For all new hires and for members who elected Class T-D
membership. the higher contribution rates began with service rendered on or after January 1, 2002.

Members who joined the System after June 30, 2011, automatically contribute at the Membership Class
T-E rate of 7.5% (base rate) of the member’s qualifying compensation. All new hires after June 30, 2011,
who elect Class T-F membership, contribute at 10.3% (base rate} of the member’s qualifying
compensation. Membership Class T-E and Class T-F are affected by a “shared risk™ provision in Act 120
of 2010 that in future fiscal years could cause the Membership Class T-E contribution rate to fluctuate
between 7.5% and 9.5% and Membership Class T-F contribution rate to fluctuate between 10.3% and
12.3%.

Employer Contributions:

The District’s contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2019, was
33.43% of covered pawroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with emplovee
contributions, is expected fo finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The 33.43% rate is composed of a
contribution rate of 32.60% for pension benefits and .83% for healthcare insurance premium assistance
(OPEB benefits)

The District is required to pay the entire contribution and will be reimbursed by the Commonwealth in an
amount equal to the Comumonwealth's share as determined by the income aid ratio (as defined in Act 29
of 1994), which is at least one half of the total District’s rate. The District’s contributions to the Plan,
relating to pension benefits, for the year ended June 30, 2019, was $9,341,769, and is equal to the
required contribution for the year. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized gross
retirement subsidy revenue from the Commonwealth in the amount of $4,770.568.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $98,746,000 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by rolling forward the System’s total
pension liability as of June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018. The District’s proportion of the net pension
liability was calculated utilizing the employer’s one-year reported covered payroll as it relates to the total
one-year reported covered payroll. At June 30, 2018, the District’s proportion was .2057%, which was an
increase of .0047 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017,
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Note 11.  Defined-Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

(Continued)

For the year-ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized pension expense of $11,541,961. At June 30,
2019, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference berween expected and actual experience § 795000 § 1528000
Changes in assumptions 1,340,000 -
Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings 484,000 -
Changes in proportion 3,109,000 -
Difference between emplover confributions and proportionate
share of total contributions 213,307 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 9,342,000

$ 15,783,307 § 1,528,000

$9,342,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the year-ended June 30, 2020. Other amounis reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ending June 30: Total
2020 S 3311441
2021 2242320
2022 (280,454)
2023 (360,000)

5 4.913,307

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of June 30, 2018, was determined by rolling forward the System’s total
pension liability as of June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied
to all periods included in the measurement:

* Actuarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level% of pay,

* Investment retum - 7.25%, includes inflation at 2.75%

* Salary growth - Effective average of 5.00%%, comprised of inflation of 2.75% and 2.25% for real
wage growth and for merit or seniority increases.

o Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to
reflect PSERS’ experience and projected using a modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality
Tmprovement Scale.
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Note 11.  Defined-Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Actvarial Assumptions (Continued)

The acmarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017, valuation were based on the resuits of an actuarial
experience study that was performed for the five-year period ending June 30, 2015,

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block
method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.

The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may be
amended by the Board, Plan assets are managed with a long-term objective of achieving and maintaining
a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the pension.

Long-Term

Target Expected Real
Asset Clasg Allocation Rate of Return
Global public equity 20,0% 5.2%
Fixed income 36.0% 2.2%
Commodities 8.0% 3.2%
Absolute return 10.0% 3.5%
Risk parity 10.0% 3.9%
Infrastructure/ MLPs 8.0% 5.1%
Real estate 10,0% 4.2%
Alternative investments 15.0% 6.7%
Cash 3.0% 0.4%
Financing (LIBOR) (20.0)% 0.9%

100.0%

The above was the Board's adapted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real rates of
return for each major asset class as of June 30, 2018.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current
contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at contractually required rates,
acmarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension Liability,
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Note 11.  Defined-Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liabilitv to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower (6.25%) or one-
percentage-point higher (8.25%) than the current discount rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
Diistrict's proportionate share of the
net pension liability 5 122403000 % 98,746,000 5 78,744,000

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about PSERS' fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report which can be found on the System’s website at Www.psers. pa.gov.,

Plan Payables

At June 30, 2019, the District has payables to the PSERS pension plan of $3,234.253, This total is
composed of staff payroll accruals for retirement contributions.

Note 12.  Act 93 Employee Annuity

The District provides all Act 93 employees with a tax sheltered annuity. The District provides a 80.50
contribution to each $1.00 of employee contribution, up to a maximum District contribution of $2,500.
The District contributed $37,971 to the plan for the year ended Tune 30, 2019,
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Note 13.  Other Post-Employment Benefits - District’s Single Employer Plan

Plan Description, Benefit Terms and Funding Policy

The District provides retiree health, vision and dental care benefits, inchiding prescription drug coverage,
to eligible, retired employees and qualified spouses/beneficiaries, This is a single-emplover, defined-
benefit plan administered by the District. The District funds OPEB on a pay-as-you go basis, and there is
no obligation to make contributions in advance of when nsurance premivins or claims are due for
payment, The District does not maintain or accumulate any assets within a trust in accordance with
paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75. The plan description and benefit terms provided by the plan are
summarized in the chart below:

GROUP ELICIBILITY COVERAGE AND PREMIUM SHARING DURATION
A - Already Coverage: Medical, Prescriprion Dz, Dental and | Retires and Spouse coverage
retired Wision coverage for Hetiree and Spouse {ifspowse | s provided unti] Retires is
s no oibes coverage) eligibile for Medicare ar until
Prensun Sharing- Fully paid try Districe Bedree's dearh, whechever is
carlier.
B Retire on of afer July 1, 2016 Age 57 Wi 20 Coverage: Medical and Presersption Divg coverage|  Same 2 L4

years o PRERS fir Reetiree and Spouss {if spause has no ather
service and 5 years | coverage)

of service within | Premiven Sharine

DTSD Croug 1 {Prindpals, Diroctors, Assiztant
Suporintendent): The premium sharme far
Mecical and Prescription Drug coverage is set 21
12% (4% 1 participating in Wellness prograrn)
of the previous schoal year's full COBRA rate

Group 2 {Admin Support Staff, Compuater
Tochs): The premiizn sharing for Medical and
Prescription Drug coverage i set 3 0% (4.5% if
participatmg in Wellness program) of fhe
previow school year's foll COBRA rare.

L TEACHERS UNION A= 57 with 20 Conerage: Medical, Prescription D and Vision | Same 2 LA
years of PSERS Vesom coverage s 30+ years of servece wilk
service and 13 DTED) coveraze for Retires and Spruse (Spowsal
vears of service Coverage Surcharge may apply)
within DTED Premivrn Sharing: The premism sharing for

Medical and Prescription D coverape is sef at
1294 (6% if participating in Welinas: program) of
#the previous school year's full COBRA rate Vimsan
coverage i fially paid by the District

I 0N PROFESSIONAL TNION At L1035 Act 11603 Coverage is provided unsil
Retires is eligihls for
DMedicare or unkil Retires's
death, whichever is earlier
Spouse coverage ends at
Spouse Medicae eligibality if
earlier them above.

Nots:

Act 110043 Eligitiliry: AN employees ae ehigitde for this benefit upon retiremest with 30 years of PSERS servace of upot soperaniusion rebiement.
Act 110643 Coverage and Premium Sharing: Retired are allowed to comtines coverage for themsslves and their in the emplovers
group health plan unti] the retired employee reached Medicare age I order to obtain coverage, retired empioyess must provide payment equal to the
preminm determined for the puepose of COBRA.

PSERS Superansuation Retiremest:
1) Far individuals who wers members of PSERS price to Tuly |, 2011, an emgloyee is eligible for PSERS supsranmuation retirement upan reaching age
60 with 30 years of PSERS service. age 62 with 1 pear of PSERS service or 35 years of PSERS service regardless of age.

2} For ndividuals wo became mednbers oI PSERS on or after July 1, 2011, an mq)lo’y!e Bﬂt‘glm for PSERS SUperannualc fetirement upon
age 65 with 3 years of PSERS service ar upan attai afa total combiration of age plis service equal fo or greater than 32 with 1 minimim of 35
years of PSERS service

Coordinatean mith Medscare: Plan besiefifts pay secondary to Medicare:




DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13.  Other Post-Employment Benefits - District’s Single Employer Plan {Continued)

Emplovees Covered by Benefit Terms

At July 1, 2018, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 16

Inactive employees entitle to but not yet receiving benefit payments -

Active employees 410
426

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPER

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $9,377,227 for the total OPEB liability. The total OPEB
liability was measured as of July 1, 2018 and was determined by an actarial valuation as of July 1, 2018,
The OPEB liability is composed of the following:

Amount
Total OPEB Liability, beginning S 0,682,890
Changes for the year
Service cost 733487
Interest 319,081
Differences between expected and actual experience (952,930)
Changes in assumptions 4,691
Estimated benefit payments {410,001)
Net changes {305,672)
Total OPEB Liability, ending § 9377227

For the year-ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $962,560. At June 30, 2019, the
District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the
following sources:

Deferred Deferred Inflows
Outflows of of Resources

Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience S - 5 879,628
Changes in assumptions 4,330 204.807
Benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date 256,866

$ 261,196 S 1,084.435




DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13.  Other Post-Employment Benefits - District’s Single Employer Plan (Continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
(Continued)

Of the total amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, $236,866 resulting from
District benefit payments subsequent to the measurement date and before the end of the fiscal vear will be
included as a reduction of the collective net OPEB liability in the year ending June 30, 2020. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
will be recognized in the District’s OPEB expense as follows:

Year ending June 30: Total
2020 b} (90.,008)
2021 (90,008)
2022 {90,008)
2023 (90,008)
2024 (90,008)
Thereafter (630,0635)
S (L,080,105)

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2017, using the following
actarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, nnless otherwise specified:

» Inflation - 2.5%

* Salary Increases - 2.5% cost of living adjustment, 1% real wage growth and for teachers and
administrators a merit increases which varies by age from 2.75 to (%,

s Discount Rate - 2.98%. Based on S&P Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Rate Index at
July 1, 2018,

* Health Care Cost Trend Rate - 6.0% in 2018, and 5.5% in 2019-2021. Rates gradually decrease
from 5.4% in 2022 to 3.8% in 2075 and later based on the Society of Actuaries Long-Run
Medical Cost Trend Model.

» Retirees” Share of Benefit-Related Costs - Retiree contributions are assumed to increase at the
same rate as the Health Care Coost Trend Rate.

*  Morality rates are separate and assumed preretirement and postrefirement using the rates
assumed in the PSERS defined benefit pension plan actuarial valuation. Incorporated into the
table are rates projected generationally by the Buck Modified 2016 projection scale to reflect
mortality improvement,
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 13.  Other Post-Employment Benefits - District’s Single Employer Plan (Continued)

Sensitivity of the District®s Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the district calenlated using the discount rate of 2.98%,
as well as what the total OPERB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-
percentage-point lower (1.98%) or one-percentage-higher (3.98%) than the current discount rate:

Current
1% Decrease  Discount Rate 1% Increase
1.98% 2.98% 3.98%
Taotal OPEB liability § 10,134,855 § 9,377,227 § 8,657,768

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability decreased from 3.13% as of July 1, 2017 to
2.98% as of July 1, 2018,

Sensitivity of the District’s Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the district calculated using the health care cost trend
rates of (6.0% decreasing to 3.8%), as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated
using a health care cost trend rates that are one-percentage-point lower or one-percentage-point higher
than the current healtheare cost trend rates:

Current Trend
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
Taotal OPEB liability § 8213209 § 9,377,227 § 10,757,489
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14.  Other Post-Employment Benefits - PSERS Cost Sharing Plan

Swstem Administration

The administrative staff of the Pennsylvania Public School Employees” Retirement System (PSERS or the
System) administers a defined benefit pension plan, and two post-employment healthcare programs, the
Health Insurance Premium Assistance Program (Premium Assistance) and the Health Options Program
(HOP) for its retirees, The System is a governmental cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit
pension plan that provides retirement benefits to public school employees of the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania (Commonwealth). The members eligible to participate in the Swystem include all full-time
public school employees, part-time hourly public school employees who render at least 500 hours of
service in the school year and part-time per diem public school employees who render at least 80 days of
service in the school year in any of the reporting entities in Pennsylvania, The HOF is a PSERS sponsored
voluntary health insurance program for the sole benefit of PSERS retirees, spouses of retirees and
survivor annuitants and their dependents who participate in HOP, The HOP is funded exclusively by the
premiums paid by its participants for the benefit coverage they elect.

The control and management of the System, including the investment of its assets is vested in the Board
of Trustees (Board). The Commonwealtl's General Assembly has the authority to amend the benefit
terms of the System by passing bills in the Senate and House of Representatives and sending them to the
Governot for approval.

Plan Description and Benefits Provided - Health Insurance Premium Assistance Program

The System provides Premium Assistance which. is a governmental cost sharing, multiple-employer other
post-employment benefit plan (OPEB) for all eligible retirees who qualify and elect to participate.
Emplover contribution rates for Premium Assistance are established to provide reserves in the Health
Insurance Account that are sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding
year. Effective January 1, 2002, under the provisions of Act 9 of 2001, participating eligible retirees are
entitled to receive premium assistance pavments equal to the lesser of $100 per month or their out-of-
pocket monthly health insurance premium. To receive premium assistance, eligible retirees must obtain
their health insurance through either their school employer or the PSERS' Health Options Program, As of
Tune 30, 2018, there were no assumed future benefit increases to participating eligible retirees.

Premium Assistance Eligibility Criteria

Retirees of the System can participate in the Premium Assistance program if they satisfy the following
criteria:

*  Have 24 Y% or more years of service, or

+  Are a disability retiree, or

+ Have 15 or more vears of service and retired after reaching superannuation age, and

+ Participate in the HOP or employer-sponsored health insurance program.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14.  Other Post-Employment Benefits - PSERS Cost Sharing Plan (Continued)

Emplover Contributions

The District’s contractually required contribution rate for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, was (.83%
of covered payroll, actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by emplovees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability, Contributions to the OPEB plan from the
District were $237,843 for the year-ended June 30, 2019,

OFEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2019, the District reported a liability of $4,289,000 for its proportionate share of the net
OFEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2018, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPER lability was determined by rolling forward the System’s total OPEB
liability as of June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018, The District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was
calculated utilizing the employer’s one-year reported covered payroll as it relates to the total one year
reported covered payroll. At June 30, 2018, the District’s proportion was .2057%. which was a increase of
0047 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2017.

For the year-ended June 30, 2019, the District recognized OPEB expense of $219,000. At June 30, 2019,
the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB
from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Difference between expected and actual experience 5 26000 % -
Changes in assumptions 68,000 163.000
Net difference between projected and actual investment earnings 7.000 -
Changes in proportion 123,000 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 238,000 -

3 462,000 5 163,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14.  Other Post-Employment Benefits - PSERS Cost Sharing Plan (Continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
(Continued)

$238,000 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPERB liability in the
vear-ending June 30, 2020, Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ending June 30: Amount
2020 5 T.000
2021 7.000
2022 7.000
2023 6,000
2024 5,000
Thereafter 29,000

5 61.000
Actuarial Assumptions

The Total OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2018, was determined by rolling forward the System’s Total
OPEB Liability as of June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied
to all periods included in the measurement:

«  Acmarial cost method - Entry Age Normal - level% of pay.

« Investment return - 2.98% - S&P 20 Year Municipal Bond Rate.

+  Salary growth - Effective average of 5.00%, comprised of inflation of 2.75% and 2.25% for real
wage growth and for merit or seniority increases.

+  Premium Assistance reimbursement is capped at $1.200 per year,

+ Assumed Healthcare cost trends were applied to retirees with less than $1.200 in preminm
assistance per vear.

+  Morality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to
reflect PSERS” experience and projected using a modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality
Improvement Scale.

+  Participation rate:

«  Eligible retirees will elect o participate Pre age 65 at 50%
»  Eligible retirees will elect to participate Post age 65 at 70%

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study that was performed for the five-vear period ending June 30, 2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14.  Other Post-Employment Benefits - PSERS Cost Sharing Plan (Continued)

Actvarial Assumptions (Continued)
The following assumptions were used to determine the contribution rate:

*  The results of the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, determined the employer contribution
rate for fiscal year 2018,

+  Cost Method: Amount necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance through the third
fiscal year after the valuation date.

+  Asset valuation method: Market Value.

+  Participation rate: 63% of eligible retirees are assumed to elect premium assistance.

+  Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortality Tables for Males and Females, adjusted to
reflect PSERS" experience and projected using a modified version of the MP-2015 Mortality
Improvement Scale.

Investments

Investments consist primarily of short-term assets designed to protect the principal of the plan assets. The
expected rate of return on OPEB plan investiments was determined using the OPEB asset allocation policy
and beat estimates of geometric real rates of return for each asset class.

The OPEB plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested plan assets is established and may be
amended by the Board. Under the program, as defined in the retirement code employer contriburion rates
for Premium Assistance are established to provide reserves in the Health Insurance Account that are
sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding year,

Long-Term
Target Expecied Real
Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Cash 5.9% 0.3%
US Core Fixed Income 92.5% 1.2%
Non-US Developed Fixed 1.3% 0.4%

100.0%

The above was the Board's adopted asset allocation policy and best estimates of geometric real rates of
return for each major asset class of June 30, 2018,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 14.  Other Post-Employment Benefits - PSERS Cost Sharing Plan (Continued)

Disconnt Rate

The discount rate nsed to measnre the Total OPEB Liability was 2.98%. Under the plan’s funding policy,
contributions are structured for shori-term funding of Premivm Assistance, The funding policy sets
contribution rates necessary to assure solvency of Premium Assistance through the third fiscal year after
the actuarial valuation date. The Premium Assistance account is funded to establish reserves that are
sufficient for the payment of Premium Assistance benefits for each succeeding year. Due to the short-term
funding policy, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was not projected to be sufficient to meet
projected future benefit pavments, therefore the plan is considered a “pay-as-you-go™ plan. A discount
rate of 2.98% which represents the S&P 20 yvear Municipal Bond Rate at June 30, 2018, was applied to all
projected benefit payments to measure the total OPEB lLiability.

Change in Actuarial Assumptions

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability decreased from 3.13% as of June 30, 2017 to
2.98% as of June 30, 2018,

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, calculated using the
disconnt rate of 2.98%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability wonld
be if it were calculated vsing a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower (1.98%) or one-
percentage-point higher (3.98%) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease  Current Discount 1% Increase
1.98% Rate 2.98% 3.08%

District's proportionate share of the
net OPEB liability 4877000 5 4280000 S 3,800,000
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Note 14.  Other Post-Employment Benefits - PSERS Cost Sharing Plan (Continued)

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liabilitv to Changes in the Healthcare
Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net OPER liability, as well as what the
District’s proportionate share of the net OPER liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare
cost trend rates (between 5% fo 7.75%) that are one-percentage-point lower or one-percentage-point
higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates;

Current Trend
1% Decrease Rate 1% Incrense

District's proportionate share of the
net OPEB liability P 4283000 5 4289000 5 4.289,000
OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about PSERS’ fiduciary net position is available in PSERS Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report which can be found on the System’s website at www. psers.pa.gov,

Plan Payables
At June 30, 2019, the District has payables to the OPEB plan of $82.344.

Note 15,  Commitments

Lease Buyout Commitments

On November 1, 2015, the Disirict terminated its Master Lease Agreement (including all amendments)
dated April 17, 2001, with Room One Corporation (ROC). The District paid a termination price in the
amount of $1.629.000 to ROC ro assume all ROC"s rights, duties and obligations under the Master Lease
and all sublease and sub-subleases. The termination price of 1,629,000 is being amortized over a two-
vear period.

Future payments to ROC will be dependent upon the Hershey Lease. The Hershey Lease was renewed
through October 31, 2019, and the District is required to pay to ROC one half of the Base Rent described
in the Hershey Lease until October 31, 2021, These financial statements have reflected these payments to
ROC as reduced rental income in the Granada Project Fund,
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Note 16.  Risk Management

The policy of the District is to not purchase health and vision insurance for the risks of losses to which it
is exposed. Instead, the District’s management policy is that it is more economical to manage its risks
internally. The District pays all claims for risk of loss which the District is exposed, including medical,
dental, drug and vision claims, which are administered by third parties. The District has purchased stop
loss insurance from commercial insurers that will reimburse the District for 100% of all medical claims
over $170,000 per year per participant with exceptions. The District will also receive a stop loss
reimbursement of 100% for all medical claims which exceed 56,904,506 in the aggregate for the vear.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be
reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported.
Because of delays between the time a claim is incurred and it is reported to the District for payment, the
estimated liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount. A current pavable has been included in
accrued salaries and benefits of the General Fund for claims reported but not paid by June 30, 2019, plus
accrued teachers summer benefits, which both amount 1o $120,492. Changes in the District’s claims
liability amount for the year ended June 30, 2019, were:

Amount
Liability - beginning of year § 329,906
Current year claims and changes in estimates 3,574,517
Less - claim payments (3.783,931)
Liability - end of year S 120492

The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss. including workers
compensation, liability and property and casualty insurance. Seftled claiuns resulting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal vears.
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Note 17.  Contingent Liabilities

The District is subject to real estate tax assessment appeals on an ongoing basis. If tax appeals are
successful, the result is a loss of 1ax revenue to the District. Tt is anticipated that any material loss of tax
revenue on individual tax appeals will be offset with additional revenues from other properties or other
sources of revenue and would not create a financial hardship to the District.

The District is involved in various lawsuits in the normal course of operations, Management cannot
predict the putcome of the lawsuits or estimate the amount of any loss that may result. Accordingly, no
provision for any contingent liabilities that may result have been made In the financial statements.
Management believes that losses resulting from these matters, if any, would be covered under the
District’s professional liability insurance policy and would not have a material effect on the financial
position of the District.

The District participates in numerous State and Federal grant programs, which are governed by various
rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject
to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied
with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and
the collectability of any related receivable at June 30, 2019, may be impaired. In the opinion of the
District, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and regulations
governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the accompanying combined
financial statements for such contingencies,

Note 18.  Subsequent Events

On December 20, 2019, the District issued General Obligation Bonds - Series C of 2019, in the amount of
$9,030,000 for the purpose of currently refunding the General Obligation Bonds - Series of 2014 and to
pay the cost of issuance of the notes.
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - SCHEDULES OF
DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
Year Ended June 30,

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Dustrict's proportion of the net pension liability 0.2057% 0.2010% 0.1986% 0.1945% 0.1941%
District's proportionate share of the net pension liability 598,746,000 $99.271.000  § 98420000  §84.245.000 3§ 76.826.271
District's covered payroll 527704050 $26.765.017  §25724950 $25960380 §25.071.493
District's proportionate share of net pension liability as a percentage
of its covered payroll 356.43% 370.90% 382.59% 324.53% 306.43%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 54.00% 51.84% 50.14% 54.36% 57.24%

The schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10 vear trend is compiled, only information for

those years for which information is available is shewn.
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL BISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - SCHEDULES OF
DISTRICT'S PENSION CONTRIEUTLONS
ar Ended Jume 30,

011 010

1312383 % L10679L

(1,312,383) 11,106,781}
B 2

09 018 1017
Contracteally regaiced coatributon 5 9341,76% 5§ BEOTLOC % B27.296
Comtrabutions in telation (o the ily required {3,341,768) (B,E07,160) (7,E27,208)
B = = OF =

Contrsbution deficiency (excessh

§ 18770520 § 27753265 % 25724950

26247.000 £ 27,089,773

Distrier's covered payrell

Cantrihutions as a percentage af covered paymall 3247%

30.43%
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
SCHEDULES OF CHANGES IN OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS -
DISTRICT'S SINGLE EMPLOYER PLAN
Year Ended June 30,

2019 2018
Total OPER liability
Service cost $ 733487 5 740774
Interest 319.081 246.678
Differences between expected and actual experience {952,930) -
Changes in assumptions 4.69] (238,941
Benefit payinents (410.001) (505,336)
Net change in total OPEB lability (305.672) 243,175
Total OPER Liability - beginning 9,682,899 2,439,72
Total OPER Liability - ending § 9377227 & 0682800
District’s covered payroll 5 24914381 5§ 24,053,671
Total OPERB Liability as a percentage of covered pavroll 37.64% 40.26%

Notes to Schedule:

Assumptions for salary, mortality, withdrawal and retirement were updated basad on new PSERS assumptions.

The schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10
vear trend is compiled, only infarmation for those years for which information is available is shown.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
SCHEDULES OF DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEE LIABILITY -
PSERS COST SHARING PLAN
Year Ended June 30,

2019 018
District's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.2057% 0.2010%
District's proportionate share of the net OPEB Liability S 4280000 85 4095000
Thstrict's covered payroll $ 27704050  § 26,763,017
Distriet's proportionate share of net OPEB liability as a percentage of its
covered payroll 15.48% 15.30%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB Liability 5.56% 5.73%

The schedule is presented 1o illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 vears. However, until a full 10
vear trend is compiled, only information for those years for which information is available is shown,
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION -
SCHEDULES OF DISTRICT'S OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS - PSERS COST SHARING PLAN
Year Ended June 30,

2019 2018
Contractually required contribution § 237843 8§ 230307
Contriburions in relation to the contracmally required contribution (237,843) (230,307)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - ] =
District's covered payroll § 28,770,520 § 27,758265
Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 0.83% 0.83%

The schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10
vear trend is compiled, only information for those vears for which information is available is shown.
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

June 30, 2019
Total
Capital Capital Capital
Projects Reserve Projects
Fund Fund Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents % 3108673 8§ 6781720 § 9.890402
Due from other funds - B5B.451 858,451
Other receivables - 51,575 51,575
Total assets 3,108,673 7,691,755 10,800,428
Liabilities
Accounts payable 5 - § 252911 % 232911
Total liabilities - 252,911 252,911
Fund Balances
Restricted 3,108,673 TA38,844 10,547,517
Total fund balances 3,108,673 TA3R 44 10,547,517
Total liabilities and fund balances 5 3,108,673 8 7,691,755  § 10,800,428
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Total
Capital Capital Capital
Projects Reserve Projects
Fund Fund Fund
Revenues
Local Sources 5 8,673 § 32849 3 41,522
Total revenues 8,673 32,849 41,522
Expenditures
Support services 19,955 1.24]1,181 1.261,136
Total expenditures 19,955 1,241,181 1,261,136
Other Financing Sources
Interfund transfers in - 1.850.000 1,850,000
Issuance of general obligation notes 3,055,000 - 3,053,000
Issuance of refunding debt 1.810,000 - 1.810,000
Baond premiums 149,955 - 149,955
Pavments to refunded-debt escrow agent (1.B95,000) - (1.895,000)
Total other financing sources 3,119,955 1,850,000 4,969,955
Net changes in fund balances 3.108.673 641,668 3,750,341
Fund Balances - July [, 2018 - 6,797,176 6,797,176
Fund Balances - June 30, 2019 § 3,108,673 5 TA38844 5 10,547,517
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of School Directors
Derry Township School District
Hershey, Pennsylvania

‘We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standavds
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Derry Township School District, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise Derry Township School District’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 24, 2019,

Internal Controel over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Derry Township School
District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Derry Township
School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Derry Township School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies. in internal control. such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstarement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, vet important enough to merit aftention by those charged with
governance,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies n mnternal control that might be marterial
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Camp Hill, PA * Carlisle, PA » Chambersburg, PA # State College, PA



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Derry Township School District's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and marterial effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication 1s not suitable for any other purpose.

P s, s it

Camp Hill, Pennsylvania
December 24, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH
MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REFORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE AS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of School Directors
Derry Township School District
Hershey, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We bave audited Dermry Township School District’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OME Complicmee Supplemer that could bave a direct and material effect
on each of Derry Township School District’s major federal programs for the vear ended June 30, 2019,
Derry Township School District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations and the terms and conditions
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Derry Township School District’s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our andit of compliance in accordance with auditing siandards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermmenmt Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cast Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance
require that we plan and perform the andit w obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the tvpes of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Derry
Township School District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as
we considered necessary in the circumstances.

‘We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program, However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Derry Township School District’s
compliance.

Camp Hill, PA * Carlisle, PA » Chambersburg, PA # State College, PA



Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Derry Township School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2019,

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Derry Township School District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the rypes of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Derry Township School District’s internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Derry Township School District’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or aperation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over complianee is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a tvpe of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and comrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of mternal control over compliance was for the limited purpose deseribed in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not idemify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the
Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

P, v

Camp Hill, Pennsylvania
December 24, 2019
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year-ended June 30, 2019

Section I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issmed: Unmodified
Internal control over finaneial reporting:

o Material weakness (es) identified?

o Significant deficiency (ies) identified that is not

considered o be a material weakness (es)?

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted?

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
® Material weakness (es) identified?

* Significant deficiency (ies) identified that is not
considered to be a material weakness (es)?

Yes X No

___Yes _X_None Reported

Yes X No

Yes X None Reported

Type of auditor's report issved on compliance for the major programs: Unmodified

o Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Section 2 CFR 200.5 16(a)37

g1

_ Yes X No



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year-ended June 30, 2019

Identification of the major programs:

CFDA Number{s) Name of Federal Programs/Cluster
Child Nutrition Cluster
10.553 School Breakfast Program
10.555 National School Lunch Program
Special Education Cluster (IDEA)
84.027 Special Education Grants to States
84.173 Special Education Preschool Grants

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs §750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _ Yes X No

Section II — Financial Statement Findings

A, Significant Deficiency(ies) in Internal Control
There were no findings relating to the financial statement audit required to be reported.
B. Compliance Findings

There were no compliance findings relating to the financial statement audit required to be reported.

Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

A, Significant Deficiency(ies) in Internal Control

There were no findings relating to the Federal awards as required to be reported in accordance with
section 2 CFR 200.5 [6(a) of the Uniform Guidance.

B. Compliance Findings

There were no findings relating to the Federal awards as vequired to be reported in accordance with
section 2 CFR 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2019 Total Accrued ar Accrued or
Federal  Pacs Throngh Program Recerved {Deferred) (Deferr=d)
CFDA Grantes's Grant or Anmual {Befund=d) Revenue at Revenue Expenditires Revenue Provided to
Number Mumber Period Award o the Year July 1, 2018 Becognized Recoguzed Tuge 30, 2018 Subrecipienrs
U5, Department of Education
Passed through the Pemnsy D of Edd
Title I - Grants ta Local Educanional Azsncies 400 M3-18-0118  17-18 5§ 675265 § (4477 5 e - % - 1 - §
Trtle I - Girants to Local Educational Agencies £4.010 013-19-0118  18-19 § 671,637 671,684 - 11637 671,637 (471
667,207 447 671637 611637 (47)
Ttle 1 - Supperting Effctrve Instruction State Grame 843587 OX01R0118  17-18 § 140913 19621 B8 B2 = . 3
Tiatle IT - Supgporting Efective Instuction State Granre £4.367 0Z0-19-0118 12-19 § 13619 136,939 - 136,200 136,200 (640
156260 19 821 136 100 136200 (540
Tatle TV - Srodeot Support and Academsc Evvichinent Prograsm B4 424 144-19-0118  18-19 § 48503 48,503 48,503 48,903 - -
48003 48003 48,003 =
Total passed through the Pemsyhaniz
Degarment of Educaticn BI2.670 15,144 296,839 836,830 (687
Passed thraugh the Capital Area Intermedaate Unit
Special Education Clustes (IDEA)
Special Educaticn Grants to States 2027 062-130015 17-I8 § 398230 53,636 533,656 - - -
Special Educaticn Grants to States 407 0B2-190015  18-19° § 412838 - - H2EIR 412,838 412,838
55,656 33,656 412,838 412,839 412,838
Special Education Preschool Grants 84173 131180005 1718 § 1932 GER GEE = - =
Specizl Educaticn Preschool Graars 84173 131-190015  12-19 § 160D - - 2.600 2.600 1,600
G GBS 2,600 2,600 2,600 -
Total Special Education Cluster paszed through
the Capital Area Intermediare Unit 36,344 36,344 415,438 415438 413,438 =f
Taotal U.S. Department of Edacation 229,014 71488 1272277 1272277 414,751
(Contimed)
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2019 Tatal Accred or Accrued or
Federal Pass Through Program Recerved (Dieferred) (Deferred)
CFDA Gramoss Grant  of Anwual (Refuruded) Reverus i Revenue Expendinres Eevenue Provided ro
Numbes Number Pemiod Award for the Vear Iulx 1, 218 Recognazed Recogmzed June 30, 2019 Slzbm:ieiuuh

U5, Department of Health and Human Services
Pazsad through the Pensylvants Depariment of Public Welfare
Medicaid Clugter

Medical Assistance Program: Title XX 53778 NiA 18-18 NA %371 - 9,771 5371 -
Tetal Medicaid Chater 9,771 - @371 49371 -
Total U.5. Department of Health and Homan Services 9771 - 8771 977

T.5. Department of Agriculture

Passed through the P Dropartment of
School Breakfast Program® 10,353 HA 17-18 NA Loz4 1,024 = = =
School Breakfast Program® 10.553 WA 18-18 ™A 40,668 - 41,791 £1,781 1,123
41,092 1.024 41,791 41,791 11233
Matonal School Lunch Program® 10555 17-18 NA 4591 4,9%1 - - -
Nmional School Lunch Program® 10.553 1513 NA 230420 B 236,044 234,046 8224
233411 4.9%1 236,044 236,040 9224
Tatal passed theoogh the Penrsylvania
Diepartent of Educaton 277103 6,015 278437 273437 134 -
Bassed through the Penrsylvania Deparment of Apneuirre
Natiomal School Lunch Program - Food Donations* 10,555 NA 1219 NA 101818 fa) (19 7801 (b) 101 819 106,266 {ch (14233} {d}
Total U.5. Department of Azriculure 378.920 (13,265} 380,256 JR5M5 (6,884}
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 5 1317707 5 382123 3 lﬁl.!Dﬂl 3 l,ﬁ?.!sl 3 447, .S-E? ]
*Programs in the Child Nutrition Cluster Legend:
School Breakfact Program 5 41781 (2} USDIA Donated Commodities Received
TNanomal School Luneh Program 2364846 (b) Beginming Inventory at July 1

National Schaal Lunch Program - Food Donatiom (c} Tatal Value of Commodities Used

{d) Ending Inventary at June 30

S Motes 10 Schedule of Expeadinges of Federal Awards,



DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal award activity of the
District’s under programs of the federal government for the year ended June 30, 2019. The information in
this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Adminisivarive Requivements, Cost Prinelples, and Audir Requivements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
District’s operations, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
assets, or cash flows of the District.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenditures
are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Revenue is recognized when earned,
and expenses are recognized when incurred. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent
adjustments or credits made in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior
years. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where available. The District has not elected
to use the 10% de Minimis indireet cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

Note 3. Access Program

The ACCESS Program is a medical assistance program that reimburses local education agencies for
direct, eligible health-related services provided to enrolled special needs students. ACCESS
reimbursements are federal monies bur are classified as fee-for-service revenues and are not considered
federal financial assistance and are not included on the Schedule. The amount of ACCESS funding
expended, but not included on the Schedule, for the year ended Tune 30, 2019, was $105,707.
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DERRY TOWNSHIP SCHOOL DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR’S AUDIT FINDINGS
Nr- Tl ol June (01 201

There were no prior year’s audit findings.
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